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ANNUAL RETURN PERCENTAGE
Years Ending

- Company Name/Index 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Wt | Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. 10552 | 14931 | 701 | 1477 | s
, ! ) |S&P Small Cap 600 Index -14.63 38.79 22.65 | 7.68 15.12 |
K ;{-e'-?‘f‘ *{ Peer Group 1444 | 4954 | 1147 | 1678 | 1435 |
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: Woh . Years Ending

A Base

t T Period
] Georgia-Carolina Bancshares,lnc.] 100 | 205.52 512.38 ] 475.94 405.63 398.51
[ s&p small cap 600 Index | 100 [ 8537 | 11848 [ 14532 | 15648 [ 18014 |
| Peer Group [ 100 ] 11444 | 17104 ] 19077 | 22278 | 25474 |

APPALACHIAN BANCSHARES INC. CRESCENT BANKING CO. SAVANNAH BANCORP, INC.
s CCF HOLDING CO. FLAG FINANCIAL CORF, SOUTHEASTERN BANK FINL CORP.
-1 H »~ [ CITIZENS BANCSHARES CORP. GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES SUMMIT BANK CORP/GA
b ,_ : COLONY BANKCORP, INC, HABERSHAM BANCORP, INC. WGNB CORP
Lot {" A COMMUNITY NATIONAL BANCORP PAB BANKSHARES, INC.
{Acquired by South Georgia bank Holding 6/2006]
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April 27, 2007 4

Patrick G. Blanchard !
President & CEO ‘
}

Dear Sharcholders, Customers, Employees and Friends: ¥
It is our pleasure to present the 2006 Annual Report of Georgia-Carotina Bancshares, Inc. l

As a marter of record, this year represents the 10th anntversary of the Company, which marks ten
quite active and productive years. ,

Consoliduted aet income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $2,897.000 compared to
consolidated net income of $3,455,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The year 2006 was a significant one for the Company and our subsidiary. First Bank of Georgia.
While the apening of the corporate headquarters and new Main Office created additional operating expetses
which were expucted to have a negative impact on profitability. this new office is needed to mainiain the
strong growth that we have enjoyed over the past seven years.

We anticipate that the new corperate headquarters and new Main Office will continue contributing
10 the growth of the Company in 2007 and will begin contributing to the profitability of the Company and
the Bank beginning in 2007.

The total conselidated assets of the Company grew 10 $417.471,000 as of December 31, 2006
from $349 481 600 as of December 31, 2005, a 19.5% increase,

Bock vatue per share of the common stock of the Company increased by 1.5% or $.98 per share
to $9.31 as of December 31, 2006.

Fourth quarter retum on average assets for 2006 was .94% compared to 1.16% for the previous
year. Fowrth quarter retum on average equity for 2006 was 12.01% compared to 14.88% for 2005,

During 2006, First Bank introduced a new Overdraft Privilege Program and a new Remote De-
posit Program to bank customers and to the metro Augusia market, which partially contribuied to the Bank's
healthy increase in deposits during 2006,

Total bank leans, net of allowance for loan losses, grew by $31.942.000 during 2006, white total
bank deposits grew by $36,902.600.

‘We are pleased with our healthy growth in both loans and deposits during 2006,

Please atso accept this letter as an additional invitation to attend our Annual Meeting of Sharehold-
ers to be hefd at 4:00 p.m. on Monday, May 21, 2007 in the lobby of our new attractive Main Office which
is located at 3527 Wheeler Road.

As in the past, we also thank you for your continued interest and support of our Company and your

patronage of First Bank of Georgia.

Sincercly,

. Patrick G. Blanchard
d President & Chief BExecutive Officer

3527 Wheeler Road - Augusta, Georgia 30909 - Phonc (706) 731.6600
Post Office Box 15148 - Augusta, Georgia 30919-1148
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MISSION STATEMENT

It is the mussion of Georgia-Carolina .

Baneshares, Inc. to remain an - '

independen_t financial institution,’
while providing quality financial
services to the Georgia-Carolina
community, and to provide for
a long-term superior return to

shareholders.
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Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

MARKET INFORMATION

The Company’s common stock trades on the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “GECR”. The market for the
Company’'s common stock must be characterized as a limited market due to its relatively low trading volume and lack of analyst
coverage. The following table sets forth for the pericds indicated the quarterly high and low bid quotations per share as reported
by the Over-The-Counter Bulletin Board. These quotations also reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-ups, mark-downs,
or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions. The share prices below reflect all stock splits,

High Low

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

First Quarter $16.00 $13.82

Second Quarter $15.50 $13.50

Third Quarter $16.60 $13.95

Fourth Quarter $16.65 $12.80
Fiscal year ended December 31, 2005

First Quarter $17.60 $15.60

Second Quarter $19.50 $14.75

Third Quarter $16.35 $15.00

Fourth Quarter $15.05 $13.10

Holders of Common Stock

As of March 20, 2007, the number of holders of record of the Company's common stock was 592,

Dividends

No cash dividends were paid by the Company during the years ended December 31, 2006 or 2005. On April 1, 2005, the Company
effected a 5-for-4 split of its common stock in the form of a 25% stock dividend to shareholders of record as of March 1, 2005.

Future dividends will be determined by the Board of Directors of the Company in light of circumstances existing from time to time,
including the Company’s growth, financial condition and results of operations, the continued existence of the restrictions described
below on the Bank’s ability to pay dividends and other factors that the Board of Directors of the Company considers relevant. In ad-
dition, the Board of Directors of the Company may determine, from time to time, that it is prudent to pay special nonrecurring cash
dividends in addition to or in lieu of regular cash dividends. Such special dividends will depend upon the financial performance of
the Company and will take into account its capital position. No special dividend is presently contemplated.

Because the Company’s principal operations are conducted through the Bank, the Company generates cash to pay dividends
primarily through dividends paid to it by the Bank. Accordingly, any dividends paid by the Company will depend on the Bank's
earnings, capital requirements, financial condition and other factors. Under Georgia law, the Bank may pay dividends only
when and if the Bank is not insclvent. In addition, dividends may not be declared or paid at any time when the Bank does not
have combined paid-in capital and appropriated retained earnings equal to at least 20% of the Bank’s capital stock. Moreover,
dividends may not be paid by the Bank without the prior approval of the Georgia Banking Department, if the dividends are in
excess of specified amounts fixed by the Georgia Banking Department.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The Company currently has three equity compensation plans: (i) the 1997 Stock Option Plan, which was approved by sharehold-
ers; (ii) the 2004 Incentive Plan, which was approved by shareholders; and {jii} the Director Stock Purchase Plan, which has not
been approved by shareholders. The following table provides information as of December 31, 2006 regarding the Company’s

then existing compensation plans and arrangements:

Nurmiber of securities to be
issued upon exercise of out-
standing options,

warrants and rights

Plan Category {a)
Equity compensation plans approved

by security holders:
1997 Stock Option Plan 291,055
2004 Incentive Plan 39,505
Equity compensation plans not

approved by security holders N/A

Recent 5ales of Unregistered Securities; Issuer Stock Purchases

Not Applicable.

Weighted-average exerclse
price of outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(b)

$6.90
$14.79

N/A

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance
under equity compensation

plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (2))

(c)

290,620

83,860

2006 ANNUAL REPORT




Selected Financial Data

Our selected consolidated financial data presented below as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002 through 2006 is
derived from our audited consclidated financial statements. Qur audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2005 and 2006 and for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006 are included elsewhere in this report.
All years have been restated as necessary for stock dividends and stock splits.

At and for the Years Ended December 31,
($ in thousands, except per share data)

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Selected Balance Sheet Data:
Assets $ 417471 $ 349,481 $ 332,393 $ 266,025 $ 257,362
Investment securities 55,404 39,362 43,375 35,594 28916
Loans, held for investment 280,883 248,311 216,728 174,567 145,370
Loans, held for sale 56,758 40,064 56,729 34,219 67,927
Allowance for loan losses 4,386 3,756 3,416 3,164 2,436
Deposits 341,342 304,440 257,780 221,656 201,619
Short-term borrowings 38,561 13,342 46,987 19,993 35,745
Accrued interest 3,214 1,539 785 531 1,110
Long-term debt 700 800 900 1,000 1,000
Other liabilities 1,528 751 573 981 993
Shareholders’ equity 32126 28,609 25,368 21,864 16,895
Selected Results of Operations Data:
Interest income 25,335 20,876 16,088 15,159 13,368
interest expense 11,969 8,420 4,468 4911 5,172
Net interest income 13,366 12,456 11,620 10,248 8,196
Provision for loan losses 898 1,022 808 880 451
Net interest income after provision for
loan losses 12,468 11,434 10,812 9,368 7,745
Non-interest income 9,800 10,331 10,571 15,540 10,397
Non-interest expense 17,911 16,368 15,714 16,503 12,879
Income before taxes 4,357 5,397 5,669 8,405 5,263
Income tax expense 1,460 1,942 2,167 3,373 1,932
Net income $ 2897 $ 3455 5§ 3502 S 5032 S 333
Per Share Data
Net income - basic 5 0.86 S 104 § 1.06 5 1.53 $ 1.02
Net income - diluted $ 0.83 S 098 $ 0.99 5 1.41 $ 0.95
Book value 5 9.51 S 853 § 7.65 5 6.63 $ 5.17
Weighted average number of shares ocutstanding:
Basic 3,370,277 3,336,834 3,305,534 3,281,130 3,253,662
Diluted 3,489,564 3,524,294 3,521,876 3,560,495 3,518,055
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Performance Ratios:
Return on average assets
Return on average equity
Net interest margin (1)
Efficiency ratio (2)

Loan to deposit ratio

Asset Quality Ratios:

Nonperforming loans to total loans

Nonperforming assets to total assets

Net charge-offs to average total loans

Allowance for loan losses to
nonperforming loans

Allowance for loan losses to total loans

Capital Ratios:

Average equity to average assets
Leverage ratio
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio
Total risk-based capital ratio

Growth Ratios and Other Data:
Percentage change in net inccme
Percentage change in diluted net
income per share
Percentage change in assets
Percentage change in loans
Percentage change in deposits
Percentage change in equity

(1) Non-tax equivalent.

2006

0.78%
9.57%
3.81%
77.39%
98.92%

0.68%
0.69%
0.09%

191.86%
1.30%

7.85%
9.25%
10.50%

(16.2%)])

{15.3%}
19.5%
17.1%
12.1%
12.3%

(2) Computed by dividing non-interest expense by the sum of
net interest income and non-interest income, excluding gains

and losses on the sale of assets.

At and for the Years Ended December 31,

2005

1.00%
12.80%
3.78%
71.45%
94.72%

0.59%
0.61%
0.24%

219.91%
1.30%

8.14%
9.91%
11.16%

{1.3%)

{1.0%}
5.1%
5.5%

18.1%

12.8%

2004

1.19%
14.86%
4,14%
70.81%
106.08%

0.61%
0.63%
0.23%

205.29%
1.25%

7.98%
9.11%
10.34%

{30.4%)})

(29.8%)
24.9%
31.0%
16.3%
16.0%

2003

1.92%
25.97%
3.96%
63.98%
94.19%

0.51%
0.42%
0.07%

299.05%
1.52%

8.48%
10.38%
11.85%

51.1%

48.4%

3.4%
{2.1%)
9.94%
29.4%

2002

1.44%
22.14%
4.12%
65.72%
105.79%

(1.28%
0.35%
0.12%

408.04%
1.14%

6.81%
B.68%
9.93%

98.9%

93.9%
25.0%
22.6%
34.8%
28.0%
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion provides informaticn about the major components of the results of operations and financial
condition, liquidity and capital resources of the Company and Bank and should be read in conjunction with the Company's
Financial Statements,

Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report contain "forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securi-
ties Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which represent the expectations or beliefs of our management, including, but not
limited to, statements concerning the banking industry and our operations, performance, financial condition and growth.
For this purpose, any statements contained in this Report that are not statements of historical fact may be deemed for-

" u “

ward-looking statements. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, words such as “may,” “will" “expect; "believe,
“anticipate,”“intend,” “could,”“should,”“can,” “estimate,” or “continue” or the negative or other variations thereof or compa-
rable terminology are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements by their nature involve substan-
tial risks and uncertainties, certain of which are beyond our control, and actual resuits may differ materially depending on
a variety of important factors, including competition, general economic and market conditions, changes in interest rates,
changes in the value of real estate and other collateral securing loans, interest rate sensitivity and exposure to regulatory
and legislative changes, and other risks and uncertainties described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commis-
sion. Although we believe that the assumptions underlying the forward-looking statements are reasonable, any of the assump-
tions could prove to be inaccurate. Therefore, we can give no assurance that the results contemplated in the forward-looking
statements will be realized. The inclusion of this forward-looking information should not be construed as a representation by us
or any person that the future events, plans, or expectations contemplated by us will be achieved. We undertake no obligation to
update publicly or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reparting policies of the Company and Bank are in accordance with accounting principles generally accept-
ed in the United States and conform to general practices within the banking industry. Application of these principles requires
management to make estimates or judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and the accompa-
nying notes. These estimates are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, as this
information changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates or judgments, Certain policies inherently have
a greater reliance on the use of estimates, and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially
different than originally reported.

Estimates or judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the
value of an asset not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to
be established, or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities
at fair value inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record the valu-
ation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party
sources, when available. When third-party information is not available, valuation adjustments are estimated in good faith by
management primarily through the use of internal cash flow modeling techniques.

The most significant accounting policies for the Company and Bank are presented in Note 1 to the consolidated financial state-
ments. These policies, along with the disclosures presented in the other financial statement notes, provide information on how
significant assets and liabilities are valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined. Management views
critical accounting policies to be those that are highly dependent on subjective or complex judgments, estimates and assump-
tions, and where changes in those estimates and assumptions could have a significant impact on the financial statements. Man-
agement currently views the determination of the allowance for loan losses to be the only critical accounting peolicy.

2006 ANNUAL REPORT 8




The allowance for loan losses represents management’s estimate of probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolic. Es-
timating the amount of the allowance for loan losses requires significant judgment and the use of estimates related to the
amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on non-impaired loans based on histori-
cal loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends and conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant
change. The loan portfolio also represents the largest asset type on the consolidated balance sheet. Loan losses are charged off
against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. A provision for loan
losses is charged to operations based on management’s periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned, as well as cther
pertinent factors.

The allowance for loan losses consists of an allocated component and an unallocated component. The components of the
allowance for loan losses represent an estimation made pursuant to either Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
{SFAS) No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, or SFAS 114, Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan. The ailocated com-
ponent of the allowance for loan losses reflects expected losses resulting from analyses developed through specific credit al-
locations for individual loans and historical loss experience for each loan category. The specific credit allocations are based on
regular analyses of all loans over a fixed-dollar amount where the internal credit rating is at or below a predetermined classifica-
tion. These analyses involve a high degree of judgment in estimating the amount of loss associated with specific loans, including
estimating the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values. The historical loss element is determined using
the average of actual losses incurred over prior years for each type of loan. The historical loss experience is adjusted for known
changes in economic conditions and credit quality trends such as changes in the amount of past due and nonperforming loans.
The resulting loss allocation factors are applied to the balance of each type of loan after removing the balance of impaired loans
from each category.

There are many factors affecting the allowance for loan losses; some are quantitative while others require qualitative judgment.
Although management believes its process for determining the aliowance adequately considers all the potential factors that
could potentially result in credit losses, the process includes subjective elements and may be susceptible to significant change.
To the extent actual outcomes differ from management estimates, additional provisions for loan losses could be required that
could adversely affect earnings or financial position in future periods.

Additional information on the Bank’s loan portfolio and allowance for loan losses can be found in the “Loan Portfolio” section
on pages 26-31 of this “Management'’s Discussion and Analysis” Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements also includes
additional information on the Bank’s accounting policies related to the allowance for loan losses.
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Consolidated Financial Information

Certain financial information for the Company and Bank consolidated, and solely for the Bank as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is presented below:

2006 2005 2004
Total Assets :;7Netifl_1_come Total Assets Net Income- Total Assets Net Income
. o . (Doltar amounts in thousands) o . 7
Consolidated =~ $417,471  $2897 = $349,481  $3455  $332393 43,502
‘BankOnly ~  $417,154 43040 $349368  $3604  $332325  $3,696

During 2006, the Company funded operational costs primarily through proceeds from the exercise of stock options. The Com-
pany incurred approximately $329,883 in operational costs for the year ended December 31, 2006. The Company recorded an
income tax benefit of $187,300, resulting in a net loss of $142,583 for 2006.

The Company has entered into an agreement with The Bankers Bank that provides the Company with a line of credit of up to $3
million and bears interest at the prime rate minus 50 basis points and matures in 2014. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
outstanding balance under the line of credit was $700,000 and $800,000 respectively. The arrangement requires the Company
and the Bank to comply with certain financial and other covenants. At December 31, 2006, the Company and the Bank were in
compliance with all applicable covenants.

The Bank

Results of Operations - Comparison of 2006 and 2005

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Bank experienced an increase in total assets and a decrease in net income. Total
assets increased 19.5% to $417.5 million at December 31, 2006 from $349.5 million at December 31, 2005. Average total assets
were $372.8 million in 2006 and $345.9 million in 2005, an increase of $26.9 million or 7.8%. This increase in average assets is pri-
marily the result of strong loan demand during 2006. Net loans held for investment increased from $244.6 million at December
31, 2005 to $276.5 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of 13.0%. Commercial loans decreased $2.2 million, or 7.4%, from
$29.9 million at December 31, 2005 to $27.7 million at December 31, 2006. Real estate mortgage lcans increased $16.6 million,
or 10.9%, from $152.5 million at December 31, 2005 to $169.1 million at December 31, 2006, and real estate construction loans
increased $17.8 million, or 32.0%, from $55.7 million at December 31, 2005 to $73.5 million at December 31, 2006. Installment
and consumer loans increased $400,000 or 3.9%, from $10.2 million at December 31, 2005 to $10.6 million at December 31, 2006.
The decrease in commercial loans is primarily the result of softer demand in this segment of the loan portfolio. The increases in
each of the other loan categories are the result of the Bank's continuing efforts to increase these types of loans. Loans held for
sale by the Bank increased 41.6% from $40.1 million at December 31, 2005 to $56.8 million at December 31, 2006, as flattening
rates impacted the volume of activity in this loan category.

The allowance for loan losses was $4,386,000 at December 31, 2006 and $3,756,000 at December 31, 2005, This represents an
increase of $630,000, or 16.8%. The increase in the allowance is based upen management’s rating and assessment of the loan
portfolio and the credit risk inherent in the portfolio, and reflects the growth in the Bank’s loan portfolio. The Bank's ratio of
allowance for loan losses to gross loans was 1.30% at December 31, 2006 and 1.30% at December 31, 2005. Substantially all
loans held for sale originated by the Bank consist of well-secured single family residential mortgage loans which are originated
with a sales commitment and are sold in the secondary market shortly after origination, thus greatly reducing the Bank’s credit
risk. The Bank’s ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross leans, excluding loans held for sale, was 1.56% at December 31, 2006,
compared to 1.51% at December 31, 2005.

The asset growth of the Bank during 2006 was funded through deposit account growth within the Bank’s existing market areas
as well as out-of-market funding, through short-term borrowings from correspondent banks, and from lines of credit estab-
lished with the Federal Home Loan Bank. Total deposit accounts at December 31, 2006 were $341.3 million, an increase of $36.9
million or 12,1%, from $304.4 million at December 31, 2005. Total other borrowings by the Bank were $38.6 million at December
31, 2008, an increase of $25.3 million, or 190.2%, from the balance of $13.3 million at December 31, 2005. Barrowings were up in
2006 as a result of the growth in the loan portfolio.
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The Bank’s loan to deposit ratio was 98.9% at December 31, 2006 and 94.7% at December 31, 2005. Excluding mortgage Ioans
held for sale, this ratio was 82.3% for 2006 and 81.6% for 2005.

Interest income was $25.3 million for 2006, compared to $20.9 million for 2005. This represents an increase of $4.4 million, or
21.1%. This increase was attributable to both higher loan volume as well as higher yields. Interest expense increased $3.6 million,
or 42.9%, from $8.4 million for 2005 to $12.0 million for 2006. This increase in interest expense was also the result of increased
deposit account balances as well as a higher cost of funds for the year. The increase in deposit accounts was a result of marketing
efforts in the local markets served by the Bank and strategic planning with respect to obtaining out-of-market funds. The Bank
focuses on obtaining growth in deposit accounts to fund the Bank’s loan growth. Non-interest bearing deposits increased $2.8
million, or 7.6%, from $37.0 million in 2005 to $39.8 million in 2006. Net interest income for 2006 was $13.4 million, representing
an increase of $900,000, or 7.2%, from $12.5 million in 2005.

Non-interest income of $9.8 million was recorded in 2006, a decrease of $500,000, cr 4.9%, from the $10.3 million recorded in 2005.
Non-interest expense increased from $16.4 million in 2005 to $17.9 million in 2006, an increase of $1.5 million, or 9.1%. The increase
resulted from increased personnel costs associated with normal merit increases as well as strategic new positions added during the

year. Additionally, there were increases in operating costs associated with the new main office that opened during 2005.

in total, net income decreased in 2006 by $600,000, or 17.1%, from $3.5 million in 2005 to $2.9 million in 2006 as a result of each
of the above factors.

Comparison of 2005 and 2004

For the year ended Decembear 31, 2005, the Bank experienced an increase in total assets and a decrease in net income. Total
assets increased 5.1% to $349.4 million at December 31, 2005 from $332.3 million at December 31, 2004, Average total assets
were $345.9 million in 2005 and $294.3 million in 2004, an increase of $51.6 million or 17.5%. This increase in average assets is
primarily the result of strong loan demand during 2005. Net loans held for investment increased from $213.3 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2004 to $244.6 million at December 31, 2005, an increase of 14.6%. Commercial loans decreased $900,000, or 2.8%, from
$30.8 million at December 31, 2004 to $29.9 million at December 31, 2005. Real estate mortgage loans increased $24.8 million,
or 19.4%, from $127.7 million at December 31, 2004 to $152.5 million at December 31, 2005, and real estate construction loans
increased $9.1 million, or 19.7%, from $46.6 million at December 31, 2004 to $55.7 million at December 31, 2005. Installment
and consumer loans decreased $1.5 million or 13.0%, from $11.7 million at December 31, 2004 to $10.2 million at December 31,
2005. The decrease in commercial loans is due to a significant loan payoff at year end, and the decrease in installment and
consumer loans is primarily the result of softer demand in this segment of the loan portfolio. The increases in each of the other
loan categories are the result of the Bank's continuing efforts to increase these types of loans. Loans held for sale by the Bank
decreased 29.4% from $56.7 million at December 31, 2004 to $40.1 million at December 31, 2005 as rising rates impactec! the
volume of activity in this loan category.

The allowance for loan losses was $3,756,000 at December 31, 2005 and 53,416,000 at December 31, 2004. This represents an
increase of $340,000, or 10.0%. The increase in the allowance is based upon management’s rating and assessment of the loan
portfolio and the credit risk inherent in the portfolio, and reflects the growth in the Bank’s loan portfolio. The Bank’s ratio of al-
lowance for loan losses to gross loans was 1.30% at December 31, 2005 and 1.25% at December 31, 2004. Substantially all loans
held for sale originated by the Bank consist of well-secured single family residential mortgage loans which are originated with a
sales commitment and are sold in the secondary market shortly after origination, thus greatly reducing the Bank’s credit risk. The
Bank’s ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross loans, excluding loans held for sale, was 1.51% at December 31, 2005, compared
to 1.58% at December 31, 2004,

The asset growth of the Bank during 2005 was funded through deposit account growth within the Bank's existing market areas
as well as out-of-market funding, through short-term borrowings from correspondent bariks, and from lines of credit established
with the Federal Home Loan Bank. Total deposit accounts at December 31, 2005 were $304.4 million, an increase of $46.6 million
or 18.1%, from $257.8 million at December 31, 2004, Total other borrowings by the Bank were $13.3 million at Decemteer 31,
2005, a decrease of $33.7 million, or 71.7%, from the balance of $47.0 million at December 31, 2004. Borrowings were down in
2005 as the level of loans held for sale was down.

The Bank’s loan to deposit ratio was 94.7% at December 31, 2005 and 106.1% at December 31, 2004. Excluding mortgage loans
held for sale, this ratio was 81.6% for 2005 and 84.1% for 2004.
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Interest income was $20.9 million for 2005, compared to $16.1 million for 2004. This represents an increase of $4.8 million, or
29.8%. This increase was attributable to both higher loan volume and higher yields. Interest expense increased $3.9 million,
or 88.5%, from $4.5 million for 2004 to $8.4 million for 2005. This increase in deposit expense was also the result of increased
deposit account balances as well as a higher cost of funds for the year. The increase in deposit accounts was a result of market-
ing efforts in the local markets served by the Bank and strategic planning with respect to obtaining out-of-market funds, The
Bank focuses on obtaining growth in deposit accounts to fund the Bank’s loan growth. Non-interest bearing deposits increased
$3.5 million, or 10.5%, from 2004 to 2005. Net interest income for 2005 was $12.4 million, representing an increase of $0.8 mil-
lion, or 7.2%, from $11.6 million for 2004.

The change in non-interest income was minimal with $10.3 million recorded in 2005, a decrease of $300,000, or 2.3%, from the
$10.6 million recorded in 2004,

Non-interest expense increased from $15.4 million in 2004 to $16.1 million in 2005, an increase of $700,000, or 4.7%. The in-
crease resulted from increased personnel costs associated with normal merit increases as well as strategic new positions added
during the year. Additionally, there were increases in operating costs associated with the new main office that was opened dur-
ing 2005.

in total, net income only slightly decreased in 2005 by $100,000, or 2.7%, from $3.7 miilion in 2004 to $3.6 million in 2005 as a
result of each of the above factors.

Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential

The following table presents the average balance sheet of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Also presented is the Company's actual interest income and expense from each asset and liability, the average vield of each
interest-earning asset and the average cost of each interest-bearing liability. This table includes all major categories of interest-
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities:
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AVERAGE BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollar amounts in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

Average
Balance
ASSETS
INTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Loans, net of unearned income  $302,778
Investment securities 47,153
Fed funds sold & cash in banks 2,788
Total interest-earning assets 352,719
NON-INTEREST-EARNING
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 7,404
Bank premises and fixed assets 10,879
Accrued interest receivable 1,779
Other assets 4,010
Allowance for loan losses {4,039)
Total assets $372,752
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS  EQUITY
INTEREST-BEARING
DEPOSITS
NOW accounts 529,395
Savings accounts 53,603
Money market accounts 18,782
Time accounts 178,982
Total interest-bearing deposits 280,762
OTHER INTEREST-BEARING
LIABILITIES
Borrowed funds 21,592

Total interest-bearing liabilities 302,354

NON-INTEREST-BEARING
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLBERS EQUITY

Demand depaosits 36,717
Other liabilities 3,433
Shareholders’ equity 30,248
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity $372,752

Interest rate spread

Net interest income

Net interest margin

Average interest-earning

assets to average total assets
Average loans to average deposits

13

2006 2005 2004
Interest  Average Average Interest Average Average Interest
Income/ Yield/ Balance Income/ Yield/ Balance Income/
Expense Rate Expense Rate Expense

$23,144 7.64% 5286,924 $19,263 671% $5242,158 514,713
2,053 4.35% 40,951 1,549 3.78% 38,416 1,368
138 495% 2,008 64 3.19% 373 7
25,335 718% 329,883 20,876 6.33% 280947 16,088
6,235 6,647
9,555 7,351
1,479 1,225
2,598 1,528
{3.877) {3,439}
$345,873 $294,259
$497 1.69% 532,212 5494 1.53% 536,681 5417
1,994 3.72% 56,234 1,542 2.74% 62,431 941
555 2.96% 13,001 348 2.68% 9,520 97
7.760 4.34% 145,226 4,742 3.27% 99,153 2,384
10,806 385% 246,673 7,126 2.89% 207,785 3,839
1,163 5.39% 34,052 1,294 3.80% 30,681 629
11,969 3.96% 280,725 8,420 3.00% 238,466 4,468
36,273 30,837
1,887 1,438
26,988 23,518
$345,873 $294,259
3.22% 3.33%
$13,366 $12,456 511,620
3.79% 3.78%
94.63% 95.38%
95.37% 101.41%

Average
Yield/
Rate

6.07%
3.56%
1.88%
5.73%

1.14%
1.51%
1.02%
2.40%
1.85%

2.05%
1.87%

3.86%

4.14%

435.48%
1031.48%
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Rate/Volume Analysis of Net Interest Income

The following table sets forth information regarding changes in net interest income attributable to changes in average
balances and changes in rates for the periods indicated. The effect of a change in average balance has been determined
by applying the average rate in the earlier period to the change in average balance in the later period, as compared with
the earlier period. The balance of the change in interest income or expense and net interest income has been attributed
to a change in average rate. Non-accruing loans have been included in the category “Net loans and loans held for sale.”

Year Ended Decernber 31, 2006 Year Ended December 31, 2005
Compared with Compared with
Year Ended December 31, 2005 Year Ended Decernber 31,2004

{in Thousands)

Increase (Decrease) Due to

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total
Interest earned on:
Tax-exempt securities ] N S 28 5 59 5 37 5 (21) ] 16
Taxable securities 200 245 445 54 M 165
Federal funds sold and
cash in banks 23 51 74 54 2 56
Net loans and loans
held for sale 1,064 2,817 3,881 2,715 1,836 4,551
Total interest income 5 1318 S 3141 S 4459 $ 2,860 $ 1,928 $ 4,788
Interest paid on:
NOW deposits (43) 46 3 {49} 126 77
Money market deposits 155 52 207 35 216 251
Savings deposits (72) 524 452 (91) 692 601
Time deposits 1,102 1,916 3,018 1,095 1,263 2,358
Borrowed funds {473} 342 (131) 51 564 615
Total interest expense 5 669 $ 2,880 $ 3,549 $ 1,04 $ 2861 $ 3902
Increase (decrease) in net
interest income $ 649 $ 261 S 910 S 1,819 $  {933) 5 886

Deposits

The Bank offers a wide range of commercial and consumer interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposit accounts, in-
cluding checking accounts, money market accounts, negotiable order of withdrawal ("NOW®") accounts, individual retire-
ment accounts, certificates of deposit and regular savings accounts. The sources of deposits are residents, businesses and
employees of businesses within the Bank’s market area, obtained through the personal solicitation of the Bank’s officers
and directors, direct mail solicitation and advertisements published in the local media. The Bank pays competitive interest
rates on time and savings deposits. In addition, the Bank has implemented a service charge fee schedule competitive with
other financial institutions in the Bank’s market area, covering such matters as maintenance fees on checking accounts,
per item processing fees on checking accounts, returned check charges and similar items.
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The following table details, for the periods indicated, the average amount of and average rate paid on each of the following
deposit categories (dollar amounts in thousands}:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2006 December 31,2005 December 31,2004
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Paid Paid Paid
Deposit Category
Non-interest bearing
demand deposits $36,717 - $36,273 - $30,837 -
NOW and money
market deposits 48,177 2.18% 45,213 1.86% 46,201 1.11%
Savings deposits 53,603 3.72% 56,234 2.74% 62,431 1.51%
Time depasits 178,982 4.34% 145,226 3.27% 99,153 2.40%

The maturities of certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts of $100,000 or more as of December 31, 2006 were
as follows {in thousands):

Three months or less $36,679
Qver three months through six months 29,758
Over six months through twelve months 43,124
Over twelve months 29,808

Total $139.369

Short-Term Borrowings

Borrowed funds consist of short-term borrowings, including federal funds purchased, retail and other repurchase agreements
and lines of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank. The average balance of borrowed funds was approximately $20.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $33.2 million and $30.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

The most significant borrowed funds categories for the Bank are two lines of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank, consisting
of the “Loans Held for Sale” (LHFS) program, formerly known as the warehouse line of credit, and a 1-4 family line of credit.

At December 31, 2006, the outstanding balance on the LHFS line of credit was $23,328,076 with an interest rate of 6.06%, compared
to no outstanding balance at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2004, the outstanding balance on the LHFS line of credit was
$30,001,709 with an interest rate of 2.94%. The average balance outstanding on the LHFS line of credit was $7,574,412 for 2006
with a weighted average interest rate of 5.69 %. The average balance outstanding on the LHFS line of credit was 516,192,581 for
2005 with a weighted average interest rate of 4.13%. The average balance outstanding for 2004 was $15,271,565, with a weighted
average interest rate of 2.31%. The maximum amount outstanding on the LHFS line of credit at any month end during 2006 was
$24,213,305 and was $33,967,444 during 2005. The maximum amount outstanding during 2004 was $30,001,709. The LHFS line of
creditis secured by the mortgage loans held for sale originated with the borrowed funds. The interest rate on the LHFS line of credit
is equal to the Federal Home Loan Bank's Daily Rate Credit Program rate plus 50 basis points,

At December 31, 2006, the outstanding balance on the 1-4 family line of credit was $8,500,000 with a weighted average in-
terest rate of 5.56%. The balance outstanding on the 1-4 family line of credit was $8,000,000 as of December 31, 2005, with a
weighted average interest rate of 4.44 %. At December 31, 2004, the outstanding balance on the 1-4 family line of credit was
$10,235,000, with a weighted average interest rate of 2.44%. The maximum amount outstanding on the 1-4 family line of credit
at any month end during 2006 was $9,200,000 and was $12,562,000 during 2005. The maximum amount outstanding during
2004 was $10,235,000. This line of credit was established in May 2003 and is secured by the Bank’s portfolic of 1-4 family first
mortgage loans, excluding those loans that are held for sale. The interest rate on the 1-4 family line of credit is equal to the Fed-
eral Home Loan Bank’s Daily Rate Credit Program rate,
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Loan Portfolio

The Bank engages in a full complement of lending activities, including commercial, consumer/installment and real estate loans,
As of December 31, 2006, the Bank’s loan portfolio consisted of 60.2% real estate mortgage loans, 26.2% real estate construction
loans, 9.9% commercial loans and 3.7% consumer/installment loans.

Commercial lending is directed principally towards businesses whose demands for funds fall within the Bank’s legal lending lim-
its and which are paotentiat deposit custamers of the Bank. This category of loans includes loans made to individual, partnership
or corporate borrowers, for a variety of business purposes. These loans include short-term lines of credit, short- to medium-term
plant and equipment loans, loans for general working capital and letters of credit.

The Bank’s consumer loans consist primarily of installment loans to individuals for personal, family or household purposes, in-
cluding automobile loans to individuals and pre-approved lines of ¢redit.

The Bank’s real estate mortgage loans include commercial mortgage lending and residential mortgage lending. The Bank’s
commercial mortgage loans are generally secured by office buildings, retail establishments and other types of property. The
Bank’s residential mortgage loans are primarily single-family residential loans secured by the residential property.

The Bank’s real estate construction loans consist of residential and cornmercial construction loans as well as land development
loans. These loans are primarily construction and development loans to builders in the Augusta and Savannah, Georgia areas.

While risk of ioss in the Bank’s loan portfolio is primarily tied to the credit quality of the various borrowers, risk of loss may also
increase due to factors beyond the Bank’s control, such as local, regional and/or national economic downturns, General condi-
tions in the real estate market may also impact the relative risk in the Bank's real estate portfolio.

With respect to loans which exceed the Bank’s lending limits or estahlished credit criteria, the Bank may originate the loan and
sell it to another bank. The Bank may also purchase loans originated by other banks. Management of the Bank does not believe
that loan purchase participations will necessarily pose any greater risk of loss than loans which the Bank originates.

The following table presents the categories of loans contained in the Bank's loan portfolio as of the end of the five most recent
fiscal years and the total amount of all loans for such petiods:

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

{ In Thousands)
Type of Loan
Commercial, financial and agricultural $27,692 $29,945 $30,820 $24,552 524,105
Real estate - construction 73,502 55,737 46,581 37,201 26,117
Real estate — mortgage 169,141 152,497 127,691 99,179 79,374
Installment and consumer 10.609 10,189 11.705 15,500 15,832

Subtotal $280,944 $248,368 $216,797 $176,432 $145,428

Less:
Unearned income and
deferred loan fees 61) (57) 69) (65) (58)
Allowance for possible loan losses (4,386) {3,756} (3.416) {3,164} (2,436)
Total (net of allowance) $276497 $244,555 $213.312 $173,203 $142,934

In addition to the above, at December 31, 2006, the Bank also had $56.8 million of single family residential mortgage loans held
for sale that were originated by the Bank’s Mortgage Division.
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The table below presents an analysis of maturities of certain categories of loans as of December 31, 2006:

Duein 1 Due in Due After
Type of Loan Year or Less 1 to 5 Years 5 Years Total

{In Thousands)

Commiercial, financial and agricultural $14,558 $11,309 $1,825 $27,692
Real estate-construction 71,479 2,023 - 73,502
Total 586,037 $13,332 $1,825 $101,194

The following is a presentation of an analysis of sensitivities of certain loans {those presented in the maturity table above) to
changes in interest rates as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

Loans due after 1 year with predetermined interest rates $ 11,937
Loans due after 1 year with floating interest rates $ 3220

The following table presents information regarding non-accrual and past due loans at the dates indicated:

December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
{ Dolfars In Thousands)
Loans accounted for on a non-accruai basis
Number 49 73 75 58 43
Amount $2,286 $1,708 $1,664 $1,057 $597
Accruing loans which are contractually
past due 90 days or more as to principal
and interest payments
Number 2 10 6 13 3
Amount $71 $297 5444 $496 591

The Bank does not have any loans which are “troubled debt restructurings” as defined in SFAS No. 15.

Accrual of interest is discantinued when a loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal and interest or, when in managernent’s
judgment, the interest will ot be collectible in the normal course of business. Additional interest income of $118,900 in 2006
would have been recorded if all loans accounted for on a non-accrual basis had been current in accordance with their original
terms. No interest income has been recognized in 2006 on loans that have been accounted for on a non-accrual basis.

At December 31, 2006, there were no loans classified for regulatory purposes as doubtful, substandard or special mention that
have not been disclosed above which (i) represent or result from trends or uncertainties which management reasonably expects
will materially impact future operating results, liquidity or capital resources, or (i) represent material credits about which man-
agement is aware of any information which causes management to have serious doubts as to the ability of such borrowers to
comply with the loan repayment terms.
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Summary of Loan Loss Experience

An analysis of the Bank’s loss experience is furnished in the following table for the periods indicated.

Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(Dollar amounts in thousands})
Allowance, beginning of year $3,756 $3,416 $3,164 $2,436 52,187
Charge offs:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 106 521 240 55 1
Installment and consumer a5 129 127 141 195
Real estate - mortgage 98 73 333 10 7
299 723 700 206 213
Recoveries:
Commercial, financial and agricultural 16 34 - - 1
Installment and consumer 7 7 14 53 6
Real estate - mortgage 8 - 130 1 4
AN 41 144 54 1
Net {charge-offs) recoveries (268) {682) {556} {152) {202}
Provision charged to operations 898 1,022 808 880 451
Allowance, end of year $4,386 $3,756 $3.416 $3,164 $2,436
Ratio of net (charge-offs) recoveries during the
period to average loans outstanding during the period (.09%) {.24%]) (.23%) (.07%) {.11%)

Loan Loss Allowance

In the normal course of business, the Bank has recognized and will continue to recognize losses resulting from the inability of
certain borrowers to repay loans and the insufficient realizable value of collateral securing such toans.

Accordingly, management has established an allowance for loan losses, which totaled approximately $4,386,000 at December 31,
2006, which is allocated according to the following table, along with the percentage of loans in each category to total loans:

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Commercial,

financial and

agriculturat $883 9.9% 5543 12.1% $581 14.2% $410 13.9% $330 16.6%
Real estate -

construction 1,442 26.2% 1,312 22.4% 1,165 21.5% 1,100 21.1% 704 17.9%
Real estate -

mortgage 1,760 60.2% 1,671 61.4% 1,432 58.9% 1,385 56.2% 920 54,6%
Consumer and

installment 191 3.7% 136 4,1% 152 5.4% 249 8.8% 387 10.9%
Unallocated 110 - 94 -- 86 - 20 - 95 -
Total $4,386 ] 3,756 $3.416 $3,164 $2,436

In evaluating the Bank's allowance for loan losses, management has taken into cansideration concentrations within the loan
portfolio, past loan loss experience, growth of the portfolio, current economic conditions and the appraised value of collateral
securing loans. Although management believes the allowance for loan losses is adequate, management’s evaluation of losses
is a continuing process which may necessitate adjustments to the allowance in future periods.
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Real estate mortgage loans constituted approximately 60.2% of outstanding loans at December 31, 2006. These loans include
both commercial and residential mortgage loans. Management believes the risk of loss for commercial real estate loans is gener-
ally higher than residential loans. Management continuously monitors the performance of the commercial real estate portfolio
and collateral values. Residential mortgages are generally secured by the underlying residence. Management of the Bank be-
lieves that these loans are adequately secured.

Real estate construction loans represented approximately 26.2% of the Bank’s outstanding loans at December 31, 2006. This
category of the loan portfolio consists of commercial and residential construction and development loans located in the Bank’s
market areas in Georgia and Florida, Management of the Bank closely monitors the performance of these loans and periodically
inspects properties and development progress. Management considers these factors in estimating and evaluating the allow-
ance for loan losses.

Commercial loans represented approximately 9.9% of outstanding loans at December 31, 2006. Commercial loans are generally
considered by management as having greater risk than other categories of loans in the Bank’s loan portfolio. However, the Bank
generally originates commercial loans on a secured basis, and at December 31, 2006, over 90% of the Bank’s commercial loans
were secured. Management believes that the secured status of a substantial portion of the commercial ioan portfolio greatly
reduces the risk of loss inherently present in commercial loans.

Consumer and installment loans represented approximately 3.7% of outstanding loans at December 31, 2006 and are also well
secured. At December 31, 2006, the majority of the Bank’s consumer loans were secured by collateral primarily consisting of
automobiles, boats and other personal property. Management believes that these loans inherently possess less risk than other
categories of loans.

Loans held for sale consist of single family residential mortgage loans originated by the Bank's Mortgage Division. These loans
are originated with an investor purchase commitment and are sold shortly after origination by the Bank.

The Bank's management and Board of Directors monitor the loan portfolio monthly to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance
for loan losses. Ratings on classified loans are also reviewed and performance is evaluated in determining the allowance. The
provision for loan losses charged to operations is based on this analysis. In addition, management and the Board consider such
factors as delinquent loans, collateral values and economic conditions in their evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for
loan losses.

Investments

As of December 31, 2006, investment securities comprised approximately 12.8% of the Bank’s assets. The Bank invests prirnarily
in obligations of the United 5tates or agencies of the United States, mortgage-backed securities and obligations, other taxable
securities and in certain obligations of states and municipalities. The Bank also enters into federal funds transactions with its
principal correspondent banks. The Bank may act as a net seller or net purchaser of such funds,

The following table presents, for the dates indicated, the estimated fair market value of the Bank's investment securities avail-
able for sale. The Bank has classified all of its investment securities as available for sale.

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agencies $26,177 $16,681  §$15887
Mortgage-backed securities 21,415 17,041 20,232
Obligations of States and political subdivisions 5,681 3,607 3,279
Corporate obligations - 1,008 1,557
Total investment securities $53,273  $38,337 $4(,955
Federal Home Loan Bank steck 2,131 1,025 2,420
Total investment securities and FHLB stock $55,404 $39,362 $43,375
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The following tables present the contractual maturities and weighted average yields of the Bank’s investments as of December 31, 2006:

Maturities of Investrnent Securities

WITHIN AFTERONE  AFTERFIVE AFTER

ONE THROUGH  THROUGH TEN
YEAR FIVEYEARS  TENYEARS YEARS
{ In Thousands)
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other U.5. government agencies 55,426 $7.046 512,190 $1,515
Mortgage-backed securities 595 5,533 - 15,287
Obligations of States and political subdivisions - 539 2,320 2,822
Corporate obligations - - - -
Federal home loan bank stock 213 - - -
Total 58,152 %13,118 §714510 $19,624
Weighed Average Yields
WITHIN  AFTERONE  AFTERFIVE AFTER
ONE THROUGH  THROUGH TEN
YEAR FIVEYEARS  TEN YEARS YEARS
Obligations of the U.S. Treasury and other U.S. government agencies 3.11% 5.08% 5.73% 6.00%
Mortgage-backed securities 3.46% 3.75% - 4.85%
Obligations of States and political subdivisions - 3.92% 5.96% 6.10%
Corporate obligations - - - -
Federal home loan bank stock 5.90% - - -
Total weighted average yield 3.88% 4.47% 5.73% 5.05%

The weighted average yields on tax-exempt abligations presented in the table above have been computed on a tax-equivalent basis.

With the exception of U.S. government agency securities, the Bank did not have investments with a single issuer exceeding, in the
aggregate, 10% of the Company’s shareholders’ equity.

Return on Eouiy and Asseis

The fellowing table presents certain profitability, return and capital ratios for the Company as of the end of the past three fiscal years.

December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Return on Average Assets 0.78% 1.00% 1.19%
Return on Average Equity 957%  12.80% 14.86%
Dividend Payout - -- -
Equity to Assets 7.70% 8.19% 7.63%
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Liquidity and Interest Rate Sensitivity

Deposit levels and the associated timing and quantity of funds flowing into and out of a bank inherently involve a degree of
uncertainty. In order to ensure that it is capable of meeting depositors’ demands for funds, the Bank must maintain adequate
liquidity. Liquid assets consisting primarily of cash and deposits due from other banks, federal funds sold and investment securi-
ties maturing within one year provide the source of such funds. Insufficient liquidity may force a bank to engage in emergency
measures 1o secure necessary funding, which could be costly and negatively affect earnings. The Bank monitors its liquidity on
a monthly basis and seeks to maintain it at an optimal level.

As of December 31, 2006, the Bank's liquidity ratio was 15.1% as compared to 18.8% at December 31, 2005. In addition to the
liquid assets described above, the Bank has a reserve funding source in the form of federal funds lines of credit with The Bank-
ers Bank and SunTrust Bank. Management is not aware of any demands, commitments or uncertainties which could materially
affect the Bank’s liquidity position. However, should an unforeseen demand for funds arise, the Bank held readily marketable
investment securities at December 31, 2006 with a market value of $53.3 million in its available-for-sale portfolio which would
provide an additional source of liquidity.

Gap management is a conservative asset/liability strategy designed to maximize earnings over a complete interest rate cycle
while reducing or minimizing the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risk. Various assets and liabilities are termed to be *rate sensi-
tive”when the interest rate can be replaced. By definition, the "gap”is the difference between rate sensitive assets and rate sensi-
tive liabilities in a given time harizon, At Decernber 31, 2006, the Bank was asset sensitive except in the 3-12 month time frame.

The following is an analysis of rate sensitive assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2006 (in thousands):

0-3 mos. 3-12 mos. 1-5 years :,‘:ﬁ?,:i Total
Taxable securities 5 - $6,021 $12,57% $28,992 $4.7,592
Tax-exempt securities - - 539 5,142 5,681
Federal funds sold and cash in banks 12,291 - - - 12,291
Loans 191,742 23925 118,393 3,581 337,641
Total rate sensitive assets 204,033 29,946 131,511 37,715 403,205
NOW and money market deposits 41,169 - - - 41,169
Savings deposits 53,606 - - - 53,606
Time deposits 51,989 108,658 46,047 25 206,719
Total rate sensitive deposits 146,764 108,658 46,047 25 301,494
Borrowed funds 38,561 - - - 38,561
Total rate sensitive liabilities 185,325 108,658 46,047 24 340,055
Excess of rate sensitive assets less rate
sensitive liabilities 518,708 $5(78,712) $85,464 $37,690 $63,150
Cumulative ratio of rate sensitive assets
to liabilities 110% 80% 107% 119%
Cumulative gap 518,708 $(60,004) 525,460 $63,150
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Capital Resources

The equity capital of the Bank totaled $32.3 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of $3.1 million, or 10.6%, from equity
capital of $29.2 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in equity capital was attributable to the Bank’s net income of $3.0
million, offset by a $200,000 debit adjustment as a result of SEC pronouncement SAB 108 effective Novernber 15, 2006, and
an increase of $300,000 in the Bank’s after-tax unrealized gain/(loss) on available-for-sale securities, which under Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard No. 115, is recognized in the available-for-sale partion of the bond portfolio by making adjust-
ments to the equity capital account.

The equity capital of the Company totaled $32.1 million at December 31, 2006.
Management believes that the capitalization of the Company and the Bank is adequate to sustain the growth experienced in

2006. The following table sets forth the applicable actual and required capital ratios for the Company and the Bank as of De-
cember 31, 2006:

December 31,2006 Minimum Regulatory Requirement

Bank

Tier 1 Capital ratio 9.32% 4.0%

Total risk-based capital ratio 10.57% 8.0%

Leverage ratio 8.77% 4.0%
Company - Consolidated

Tier 1 Capital ratio 9.25% 4.0%

Total risk-based capital ratic 10.50% 8.0%

Leverage ratio 7.85% 4.0%

The above ratios indicate that the capital position of the Company and the Bank are sound and that the Company is well
positioned for future growth.

There are no commitments of capital resources known to management which would have a material impact on the Bank's
capital position.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk arising from adverse changes in the fair value of financial instruments due to a change in interest rates,
exchange rates and equity prices. Our primary market risk is interest rate risk.

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk and achieve reasonable stability in net inter-
est income throughout interest rate cycles. This is achieved by maintaining the proper balance of rate sensitive earning assets
and rate sensitive liabilities. The relationship of rate sensitive earning assets to rate sensitive liabilities is the principal factor in
projecting the effect that fluctuating interest rates will have on future net interest income. Rate sensitive earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities are those that can be repriced to current market rates within a relatively short time period. Manage-
ment monitors the rate sensitivity of earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities over the entire life of these instruments in
order to manage this risk

We have not experienced a high level of volatility in net interest income primarily because of the relatively large base of core
deposits that do not reprice on a contractual basis. These deposit products include regular savings, interest-bearing transaction
accounts and money market savings accounts. Balances for these accounts are reported based on historical repricing. However,
the rates paid are typically not directly related to market interest rates, since management has some discretion in adjusting
these rates as market rates change.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank may enter into off-balance sheet financial instruments which are not reflected in
the financial statements. These instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial
instruments are recorded in the financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments become payable.

Following is an analysis of significant off-balance sheet financial instruments at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

At At
December 31, 2006 December 31,2005
{in Thousands)
Commitments to extend credit $79,828 $66,262
Standby letters of credit 2,389 1,947
$82,217 $68,209

Contractual Obligat'ons

We have various contractual obligations that we must fund as part of our normal operations. The following table shows aggre-
gate information about our contractual obligations, including interest, and the periods in which payments are due. The amounts
and time periods are measured from December 31, 2006, based upon rates in effect at December 31, 2006.

Payments Due by Period (in thousands)

Total Le1s§’;2:m 1-3 years 3-5 years M;’ I;:E;I:sa n
Long-Term Debt $889 $147 $401 $341 -
Capital Lease Obligations - - - - -
Operating Lease Obligations 811 288 523 - -
Time Deposits 216,495 168,182 47,971 295 47
5218195 5168617 548,895 $636 547
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, inc.
Augusta, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares,
Inc. and subsidiary {the “Company”) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, sharehalders’ equity, and cash flows, for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur re-
sponsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (Unit-
ed States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about wheth-
er the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred te above present fairly, in all material respects, the finan-
cial position of Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of
their operations and cash flows, for each of the years in the three-year pericd ended December 31, 2006, in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for
share-based payments and evaluating prior year misstatements effective lanuary 1, 2006.

O}.uum, ..édu,u# ~ #aﬂia,ud, LLZ

Augusta, Georgia
March 20, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31, 2006 and 2005

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounls)

ASSETS
2006

Cash and due from banks 3 11,109
Federal funds sold 1,182
Securities available-for-sale 53,273
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 276,497
Loans held for sale 56,758
Bank premises and fixed assets 10,655
Accrued interest receivable 1,738
Foreclosed real estate, net of allowance 599
Deferred tax asset, net 1,360
Federal Home Loan Bank Stock 2,131
Other assets 2,169

Total assets S 417,471

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Liabilities
Deposits

Non-interest bearing $ 39,848

Interest-bearing:
NOW accounts 28,447
Savings 53,606
Money market accounts 12,722
Time deposits of $100,000 or more 139,369
Other time deposits 67,350
Total deposits 341,342
Federal funds purchased -
Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings 31,828
Retail deposit agreements 6,733
Other liabilities 5442
Total liabilities 385,345

Shareholders’ equity(1)

Preferred stock, par value $.001; 1,000,000 shares

authorized; none issued -

Common stock, par value $.001; 9,000,000 shares

authorized; 3,376,522 and 3,354,090 shares issued and

outstanding, respectively 4
Additional paid-in capital 14,500
Retained earnings 17,903
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) {281)

Total shareholders’ equity 32,126
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 5 417,47

{1} Adjusted to reflect the 5-for-4 common stock split effected April 1, 2005,
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2005

9,498
38,337
244,555
40,064
10,563
1,756
427
1.34
1,025
1,915

349,481

36,986

33,090
58,473
19,669
94,763
61,459

304,440

3,456
8,000
1,886
3,090

320,872

4
13,974
15,183

(552)

28,609

5

349,481
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

(doliars in thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 2005 2004
Interest income
Interest and fees on loans $ 23,144 $ 19,263 S 14,713
Interest on taxable securities 1,541 1,434 1,268
Interest on nontaxable securities 512 115 100
Interest on Federal funds sold and cash in banks 138 64 7
Total interest income 25,335 20,876 16,088
Interest expense
Interest on time deposits of $100,000 or more 4,976 2,654 1,175
Interest on other deposits 5,830 4,472 2,664
Interest on funds purchased and other borrowings 1,163 1,294 629
Total interest expense 11,969 8,420 4,468
Net interest income 13,366 12,456 11,620
Provision for loan losses 898 1,022 808
Net interest income after
provision for loan losses 12,468 11,434 10,812
Non-interest income
Service charges on deposits 928 675 773
Other income 560 355 362
Gain on sale of mortgage loans 8312 9,301 9,436
Total non-interest income 9,800 10,331 10,571
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee benefits 11,801 10,828 10,248
Qccupancy expenses 1,467 1,310 1,255
Other expenses 4,643 4,230 4,211
Total non-interest expense 17,911 16,368 15,714
Income before income taxes 4,357 5,397 5,669
Income tax expense 1,460 1,942 2,167
Netincome $ 2,897 $ 3,455 $ 3,502
Earnings per share(1)
Basic s .86 S 1.04 S 1.06
Diluted ) 83 5 0.98 S 0.99

(1} Adjusted to reflect the 5-for-4 common stack split effected April 1,2005.

See notes to consalidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 2004
Net income $ 2,897 $ 3,455 $ 3,502
Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during the
period, net of tax 271 (511) (215)
Comprehensive income S 3,168 $ 2,944 $ 3,287

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSCLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

{dollars in thousands)

Balance at January 1, 2004
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss)
on securities available-for-sale,
net of deferred taxes
Stock split effected in the form
of a stock dividend
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options
lssuance of stock for compensation
Balance at December 31, 2004
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss)
on securities available-for-sale,
net of deferred taxes
Stock split effected in the form
of a stock dividend
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options
Issuance of stock for compensation
Balance at December 31, 2005
SAB 108 adjustment, net of taxes
Balance at January 1, 2006:2)
Net income
Change in unrealized gain (loss)
on securities available-for-sale,
net of deferred taxes
Proceeds from exercise of
stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Issuance of stock for compensation
Balance at December 31, 2006

{2) See Note 1 - Recent accounting standards

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Cgumen  Cgmen MW pewined BB g e
Shares ParValue Capital Earnings Rtk bt Equity

2,636,510 ) 52 $13,461 $8,227 $174 $21,864
- - - 3,502 - 3,502

- - - - (215) {215)

664,582 1 - m - -
8,600 - 40 - 40
7.558 1 176 - - 177
3,317,250 4 13,677 11,728 (41) 25,368
- - - 3,455 - 3,455

- - - - (511) (511)

368 - - - - -
24,795 - 106 - 106
11,677 - 191 - - 191
3,354,090 4 13,974 15,183 (552) 28,609
- - - (177) - (177)
3,354,090 4 13,974 15,006 (552) 28,432
- - - 2,897 - 2,897

- - - - 271 271

10,400 - 59 - 59

- - 295 - 295

12,032 - 172 - - 172
3,376,522 54 $14,500 517,903 $(281) $32,126
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
(dollars in thousands )

2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome $ 2,897 5 3,455 3 3,502
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and ameortization 764 534 480
Provision for loan losses 898 1,022 808
(Gains) losses on sales of foreciosed real estate (21 119 (9
Stock-based compensation expense 295 - -
Stock compensation 172 191 176
Deferred income tax (172) (113} (348)
Net originations, proceeds and gain
on loans originated for sale {16,694} 16,665 (24,310)
{Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable 18 (402) (228)
increase in accrued interest payable 1,674 743 236
Net change in other assets and liabilities 24 (1,036) 109
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (9,928) 21,178 (19,584}
Cash flows from investing activities
(Increase) decrease in Federal funds sold {1,182) - 8,470
Loan originations and coliections, net (33,619) (32,668) (41,272)
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (21,003) {7,077) (24,279)
Proceeds from maturities and calls of
available-for-sale securities 6,492 8,895 18,050
Purchases of restricted securities (1,106) - {1,337)
Proceeds from sales of restricted securities - 1,395 -
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed real estate 628 271 -
Net additions to premises and equipment (751) (2,755} (1,673)
Net cash used in investing activities (50,541) (31,939) {42,041)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net increase in deposits, funds purchased,

and other borrowings 33,346 44,546 40,694
Increase (decrease) in FHLB borrowings 23,828 (32,237} 21,637
Increase (decrease) in repurchase agreements 4,847 706 (204)
Proceeds from stock options exercised 59 106 40

Net cash provided by financing activities 62,080 13121 62,167
Net increase in cash and due from banks 1,611 2,360 542
Cash and due from banks at beginning of the year 9,498 7,138 6,596
Cash and due from banks at end of the year $ 11,109 5 9,498 5 7,138

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies
Nature of business

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. {the “Company”) is a one-bank holding company. Substantially all of its business is conducted
by its wholly-owned subsidiary, First Bank of Georgia (the “Bank”). The Bank is engaged in community banking activities through
its locations in Thomson and Augusta, Georgia and the surrounding area. Most of the Bank's loans and loan commitments have
been granted to customers in the Columbia, Richmond, and McDuffie County, Georgia areas. Many of the Bank’s loan customers
are also depositors of the Bank. The Bank has established a mortgage division that operates as First Bank Mortgage. This division
currently has locations in the Augusta and Savannah, Georgia areas and in Jacksonville, Florida. The division originates rzsiden-
tial real estate mortgage loans and provides financing to residential construction and development companies. Substantially all
residential martgage loans ariginated by the division are sold in the secondary market.

The Bank is subject to the regulations of Federal and state banking agencies and is periodically examined by them.

On December 31, 2004, the Company's Board of Directors approved a five-for-four stock split of the Company’s common stock
that was effected in the form of a stock dividend, on April 1, 2005 to shareholders of record on March 1, 2005. Per share infor-
mation throughout the financial statements and footnotes reflects this stock split, with prior period amounts being restated to
reflect the effects of the stock split.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of presentation; The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiary bank. Sig-
nificant inter-company transactions and accounts are eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the
Bank conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and general practices within the
banking industry.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and li-
abilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Significant group concentrations of credit risk: A substantial portion of the Bank’s loan portfolio is with customers in the Thom-
son and Augusta, Georgia market areas, The ultimate collectibility of a substantial portion of the portfolio is therefore suscep-
tible to changes in the economic and market conditicns in and around these areas.

31 2006 ANNUAL REPCRT



GE%GEG@AR INA

(uf@ teries, Glie.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Cash and due from banks: For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and due from banks includes cash on hand and amounts
due from banks {including cash items in the process of clearing). The Bank maintains due from accounts with banks primarily
located in Georgia. Balances generally exceed insured amounts.

Investment securities: The Bank’s investments in securities are classified and accounted for as follows;

Securities available-for-sale - Securities classified as available-for-sale are identified when acquired as being available-for-sale to
meet liquidity needs or other purposes. They are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, reported in
other comprehensive income.

Securities held-to-maturity — Securities classified as held-to-maturity are those debt securities the Bank has both the intent and
ability to hold to maturity regardless of changes in market conditions, liquidity needs, or changes in general economic condi-
tions. These securities are carried at cost, adjusted for amartization of premium and accretion of discount, and computed by the
interest method over their contractual lives.

Restricted equity securities without a readily determinable fair value are recorded at cost.
The Bank has not classified any securities as trading.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities are determined using the specific-identification method on a trade date basis. Divi-
dends and interest income are recognized when earned. A decline in fair value of individual available-for-sale or held-to-matu-
rity securities below cost that is deemed other than temporary, results in write-downs of individual securities to their fair value.

Loans and allowance for loan_losses: Loans are stated at principal amounts outstanding less unearned income and the allow-
ance for loan losses. Interest income on loans is credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding at the respective
rate of interest, except for unearned interest on discounted loans that is recognized as income over the term of the loan using a
method that approximates a level yield.

Loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are stated at the lower of cost or estimated fair value in the
aggregate. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income. As the mortgage
loans originated are individually pre-approved by the secondary market investors, the Bank is subject to minimal interest rate
and credit risk on these loans, as the Bank only holds the loans temporarily as funding is completed.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continsed)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Loan commitments, whose underlying mortgage loans at origination will be held for sale upon funding of the loan, are cleriva-
tive instruments as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, as amended. Pursuant 1o that SFAS,
loan commitments are recognized on the consolidated balance sheet in other assets and other liabilities at fair value, with
changes in their fair values recognized in current period earnings. At the inception of a loan commitment, the Bank generally
will simultaneously enter into a forward loan sale commitment to protect the Bank from losses on sales of the loans underlying
the loan commitment by securing the ultimate sale price and delivery date of the loan.

Accrual of interest income is discontinued when a loan becomes 90 days past due as to principal and interest or when, in
management’s judgment, the interest will not be collectible in the normal course of business. Accrual of interest on such loans is
resumed when, in management’s judgment, the collection of interest and principal becomes probable. When a loan is placed on
non-accrual status, all interest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current interest income. Interest income
is subseqguently recognized only to the extent cash payments are received.

The accrual of interest on impaired loans is discontinued when, in management's judgment, the borrower may be unable to
meet payments as due. Management applies this criterion to all loans identified for evaluation except for smaller-balance ho-
mogeneous residential mortgage and consumer instaliment loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment. Impairment
on loans is measured using either the discounted expected cash flow method or value of collateral method. A lean is impaired
when, based on current infermation and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all amounts due according
to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Management of the Bank evaluates the borrower’s ability to pay, the value of
any collateral, and other factors in determining when a loan is impaired. Management does not consider a loan to be impaired
during a period of delay in payment if it is expected that the Bank will collect all amounts due including interest accrued at the
contractual interest rate for the period of the delay.

Interest payments on impaired loans are applied to the remaining principal balance until the balance is fully recovered. Once
principal is recovered, cash payments received are recorded as recoveries to the extent of any principal previously charged-off
and then as interest income.

Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan
yield aver the life of the loan. Loan origination fees and direct loan origination costs on loans held for sale are deferred and rec-
ognized at the time the loan is sold.

The allowance for loan losses is established through a provision for ioan losses charged to expense. Loans, including impaired
loans, are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes that collectibility of the principal is unlikely.
The allowance is an amount that management believes will be adequate to absorb estimated losses on existing loans that may
become uncollectible, based on evaluation of the collectibility of certain specific loans and prior loss experience. This evaluation
also takes into consideration such factors as changes in the nature and
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

volume of the loan portfolio, overall portfolio quality, review of specific problem loans, and current economic conditions that
may affect the borrower’s ability to pay. While management uses the best information available to make its evaluation, future
adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if there are significant changes in economic conditions,

Foreclosed real estate: Foreclosed real estate represents properties acquired through foreclosure or other proceedings. The
property is held for sale and is recorded at the lower of the recorded amount of the loan, or fair value of the property, less esti-
mated costs of disposal. Any write-down to fair value at the time of foreclosure is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Prop-
erty is evaluated regularly to ensure the carrying amount is supported by its current fair value. Foreclosed real estate is reported
net of allowance for losses in the consolidated financial statements.

Bank premises and equipment: Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation, and computed by
straight-line and declining balance methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to thirty-nine
years.

Financial instruments: In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off balance sheet financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit, commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instru-
ments are recorded in the financial statements when they become payable,

Advertising: The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income taxes: Provisions forincome taxes are based on amounts reported in the statements of income after exclusion of nontax-
able income, such as interest on state and municipal securities, and include deferred taxes on temporary differences in the rec-
ognition of income and expense for tax and financial statement purposes. Deferred taxes are computed on the liability method.
Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Earnings per share: Earnings per share are calculated on the basis of the weighted average number of shares outstanding in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 128, Earnings per Share. This Statement establishes
standards for computing and presenting earnings per share and applies to entities with publicly held common stock or potential
common stock. The Company’s outstanding stock options are the primary cause of the Company’s diluted earnings per share.

Fair value of financial instruments: The following methods and assumptions are used by the Bank in estimating fair values of
financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices of financial instruments are not available, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other valuation technigues. Those technigues are significantly affected by the assumptions
used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many
cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instrument. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts pre-
sented are not intended to and do not represent the underlying value of the Bank.

Cash and due from banks, Federal funds sold, and interest-bearing deposits in banks — Due to the short-term nature of these instru-
ments, their estimated fair values approximate their carrying amounts.

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities - Estimated fair values are based on quoted market prices when available. Where
quoted market prices are not available, quoted market prices of comparable instruments or discounted cash flow methods are
used to estimate fair value,

Loans — Fair values for loans are estimated by discounted cash flows using interest rates currently being offered by the Bank for
loans with similar terms and similar credit quality. For loan commitments, the Bank utilizes prevailing interest rates being offered
on similar loans to estimate the fair value of the commitment.

Deposit liabilities, other borrowings, and retail agreements — Due to the short-term nature of demand and savings accounts and
retail agreements, the estimated fair value of these instruments approximates their carrying amounts. In addition, due to the
short-term nature of borrowings from other institutions, the estimated fair value of these instruments approximates their car-
rying amounts. Fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated by discounted cash flows using interest rates currently being
offered by the Bank on certificates.

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit are not recorded until such commitments are funded. The value of
these commitments is equal to the fees charged to enter into such agreements. The Bank has determined that such instruments
do not have a material dictinguishable fair value, and no fair value has been assigned to these instruments.

Comprehensive income; Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and lossas be in-
cluded in net income, although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale
securities, are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the statement of financial condition. Such items, along
with net income, are components of comprehensive income.

Stock-based compensation: On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Ac-
counting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, to
account for compensation costs under its stock option plans. The Company previously utilized the intrinsic value method under
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (as amended) ("APB 25). Under the in-
trinsic value method prescribed by APB 25, no compensation

-
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (costinued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

costs were recognized for the Company’s stock options because the option exercise price in its plans equals the market price on
the date of grant. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company only disclosed the pro forma effects on net income and earnings per
share as if the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123(R) had been utilized,

In adopting SFAS No. 123, the Company elected to use the modified prospective method to account for the transition from
the intrinsic value method to the fair value recognition method. Under the modified prospective method, compensation cost
is recognized from the adoption date forward for all new stock options granted and for any outstanding unvested awards as if
the fair value method had been applied to those awards as of the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share as if the fair value based method had been applied to all outstanding and unvested awards in
each period (in thousands, except per share amounts). See Note 10 for additional information regarding the Company’s stock-
based compensation plans.

2005 2004
Net income as reported 5 3,455 5 3,502
Earnings per share as reported
Basic: 1.04 1.06
Diluted: 0.98 0.99
Stock-based employee compensation cost
based on fair-value method 251 396
Proforma net income, including stock-based
compensation cost based on fair-value method 3,204 3,106
Proforma earnings per share, including stock-based
compensation cost based on fair-value method
Basic: 0.96 0.94
Diluted: 0.91 0.88
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Recently Issued Accounting Standards

in February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments. SFAS 155 amends SFAS 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, and SFAS 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial As-
sets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. SFAS 155 permits the fair value re-measurement for any hybrid financial instrument that
contains an embedded derivative that would otherwise require bifurcation. Further, it clarifies which interest-only strips and
principal-only strips are not subject to SFAS 133 requirements. It also establishes a requirement to evaluate interests in securi-
tized financial assets to identify interest in freestanding derivatives and clarifies that concentrations of credit risk in the form of
subordination are not embedded derivatives. Last, it eliminates the prohibition on a qualifying special purpose entity from hold-
ing a derivative financial instrument pertaining to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. The
Company will be required to adopt this standard in 2007. The adoption of SFAS 155 is not expected to have a material impact on
the Company's financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASS
Statement 109,” ("FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company's financial
statements in accordance with SFAS 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” This Interpretation prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to
be taken in a tax return. The Interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, ac-
counting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is required to be adopted by the Company on January 1, 2007.
Management does not expect that the impact of this Interpretation will be material to the Company's financial condition, results
of operations, or liquidity.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, “Fair Value Measurernents.” SFAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 clarifies
that the exchange price is the price in an orderly transaction between market participants to sell an asset or transfer a liability at
the measurement date, SFAS 157 emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement and not an entity-specific rneasure-
ment, It also establishes a fair value hierarchy used in fair value measurements and expands the required disclosures of assets
and liabilities measured at fair value. The Company will be required to adopt this statement beginning in 2008. The adoption of
this standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") issued Staff Accounting Bulletin 108 {"SAB 108"). 5AB 108

expresses the views of the SEC regarding the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements to determine if any re-
statement of prior financial statements is required. SAB 108 addresses the two technigues commenly used in practice in
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 1 - Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

accumulating and quantifying misstatements, and requires that the technigue with the most severe result be used in determining
whether a misstatement is material. SAB 108 was adopted by the Company on December 31, 2006. As a result of adopting SAB 108
on December 31, 2006, the Company recognized a decrease of $177,000 to beginning retained earnings as of January 1, 2006, The
decrease is the result of an additional payroll accrual as of December 31, 2005, which the Company has elected to correct under
the guidance in SAB 108, Based on the method previously applied, prior to the issuance of SAB 108, the impact was considered
immaterial to the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, and liquidity.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” SFAS 159 permits
entities to choose to measure financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be
measured at fair value. The decision to elect the fair value option may be applied instrument by instrument, is irrevocable, and is
applied to the entire instrument and not to only specified risks, specific cash flows or portions of that instrument. An entity is re-
stricted in choosing the dates to elect the fair value option for an eligible item. Adoption of SFAS 159 is effective for the Company
on January 1, 2008. Early adoption is permitted, provided the entity also elects to apply the provisions of SFAS 157, “Fair Value
Measurements”. Management of the Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of SFAS 159 on the Company's financial
condition, results of operations, and liquidity.

Note 2 - Investment securities

The amortized cost and fair value amounts of securities owned as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are shown below:

2 .
. Gross Gross .
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

{in thousands)

Available-for-sale securities:

U.S. Government and agency $ 26312 5 o5 S (230 5 26177
Mortgage-backed 21,729 41 (355) 21,415
State and municipal 5,670 44 (33) 5,681

$ 53711 $ 180 S {618) $ 53273
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2 - Investment securities (conlinued)

2005
. G G .
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale securities: finthousands)
U.S. Government and agency $ 17,057 5 - S  (378) $ 16,681
Mortgage-backed 17,511 B {478) 17,041
Corporate obligations 1,003 5 - 1,008
State and municipal 3,629 17 (39) 3,607
$ 39200 5 30 S (893) $ 38,337

The amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31, 2006 by contractual maturity are as follows. Actual maturities may
differ from contractual maturities in mortgage-backed securities, as the mortgages underlying the securities may be called or pre-
paid without penalty; therefore, these securities are not included in the maturity categories in the following maturity summary.

Securities
Available-for-Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
{in thousands)
One year or less $ 5504 $ 5426
After one year through five years 7,735 7,585
After five years through ten years 14,421 14,510
After ten years 4,322 4,337
Mortgage-backed securities 21,729 21,415
$ 53,711 $ 53,273

Securities with a carrying amount of approximately $48.7 million at December 31, 2006 and 538.8 million at December 31, 2005
were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes.

There were no material net realized gains (losses) on sales of securities during 2006, 2005, or 2004,

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 aggregated by investment cat-
egory and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position, follows:
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2 - Investment securities {continued)

2006
Less Than Twelve Months Over Twelve Months )
- e e m e o a _— P—— P o - PR |
Gross . Gross :
Fair Fair
Unrealized Unrealized
Losses Value Losses Value
{in thausands)

Securities available-for-sale:

U.S. agency S 75 299 5 224 S 15033
State and municipal 6 1,153 26 731
Mortgage-backed 8 2,096 347 14,265

$ 21 S 6240 3 597 $ 30029

2005
Le—s:T‘I;a—n Tweh;e M_o-r;ths Qver Twelve Months
Gross f Gross .
Unrealized ot Unrealized v
Losses Losses
hausand
Securities available-for-sale: fnthovsands
U.S. agency $ 105 $§ 6219 $ 271§ 10462
State and municipal 7 908 32 724
Mortgage-backed 122 6,205 356 10,346

5 234 5 13332 S 659 § 21,532

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment on a periodic basis, and more frequently when economic
or market conditions warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair
value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuers, and (3) the intent and ability of the
Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value.

At December 31, 2006, the gross unrealized losses are primarily the result of changes in market interest rates and not related to the
credit quality of the underlying issuer. Each of the securities are U.S. agency debt securities, including mortgage-backed securities

and municipal securities. As the Bank has the ability to hold the securities for the foreseeable future, no declines are deemed to
be other than temporary.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contitued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 2 - Investment securities (continued)

Included in Other Assets is ar investment of approximately $919,000 in a real estate rehabilitation project located in Georgia that
will provide the Bank with state tax credits for approximately 10 years.

Note 3 - Loans

The composition of loans for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 is summarized as follows:

Commercial and industrial
Real estate ~ construction
Real estate - residential
Real estate — commercial
Consumer

Deferred loan fees

Allowance for loan losses

Loans, net

Changes in the allowance for loan losses are as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Provision charged to operations
Recoveries
Loans charged off

Balance at end of the year

2006 2005
{in thousands)
$ 27692 $ 29945
73,502 55,737
47,319 46,464
121,822 106,033
10,609 10,189
280,944 248,368
(61) (57}
280,833 248,311
{4,386} (3,756)
5 276497 5 244,555
2006 2005 2004
{ir thousands}
S 375 $ 3416 $ 3,164
898 1,022 808
31 41 144
{299) (723) {700}
$ 4386 $ 3756 % 3416

Loans for which the accrual of interest had been discontinued or reduced amounted to approximately 52,286,000 and 51,708,000
at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. There was no significant reduction in interest income associated with non-accrual

and renegotiated loans. There were no loans identified as impaired under SFAS 114 at December 31, 2006 and 2005,

4]
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 3 - Loans {coniinued)

At December 31, 2006, executive officers and directors, and companies in which they have a beneficial ownership, were indebted
to the Bank in the aggregate amount of approximately $4,508,000. The interest rates on these loans were substantially the same
as rates prevailing at the time of the transactions, and repayment terms are customary for the type of loan involved. Following is
a summary of transactions for December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
{In thousands)

Balance at beginning of the year $ 8790 § 3,299
Advances 1,217 6,588
Repayments 5499 1,097

Balance at end of the year 5 4508 $§ 8,790

Note 4 - Foreclosed real estate

A summary of foreclosed real estate for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

(in thousands}

Carrying amount of property $ 599 $ 427 5 414
Less valuation aliowance - - -

3 599  § 427 S 414

There was no provision charged to income for each of the years presented.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2003

Note 5 —-Bank premises and equipment

Bank premises and equipment consists of the following for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
{in thousands)

Land $ 3,85 3 3,097
Building and improvements 6,020 6,151
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 4,729 4613
Construction in progress - -

14,600 13,861
Less accumulated depreciation (3,945) (3,298)
Premises and equipment, net $ 10655 § 10,563

Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was approximately $659,000, $508,000 and $480,000,
respectively.

Note 6 -Deposits

At December 31, 2006, the scheduled maturities of time deposit liabilities were as follows:

{in thousands)

2007 $ 160,647
2008 21,549
2009 12,038
2010 12,409
2011 and thereafter 76
$ 206,719

To manage the Bank's funding capabilities, the Bank may also enter into retail deposit agreements with customers and may obtain
short-term funding from other institutions. Retail deposit agreements with customers are generally secured by investment secu-
rities owned by the Bank and are established at prevailing market rates. Short-term funding from other institutions is generally
overnight or 30-day funding at current market rates. Retail deposit agreements were approximately $6.7 million and $1.9 million
at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 7 -Federal Home Loan Bank advances

As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Bank had a Credit Availability, or potential borrowing capacity, of 25% of total assets,
subject to the Bank's financial condition and collateral balances with the FHLB. One of the advance products utilized in 2006 was
the “Loans Held for Sale” (LHFS) program, formerly known as the warehouse line of credit. The line is collateralized by the Bank's
mortgage loans held for sale, Advances under this line are due 90 days from the date of the advance. As of December 31, 2006,
the Bank had a balance of $23.4 million outstanding under the LHFS program, as compared to no outstanding balance under the
warehouse line at December 31, 2005. The Bank also maintains a line of credit with the FHLB, which is secured by 1-4 family loans
held in the Bank’s loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the 1-4 family line of credit reflected balances of $8.5 mil-
lion and $8.0 million, respectively. The weighted average interest rates on the outstanding balances of both lines were 3.92% and
3.05% as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Note 8 -Line of credit

The Company has a line of credit with a financial institution, which provided the Company the ability to draw $3.0 million at cur-
rent market rates until December 30, 2003 with a maturity date of January 1, 2014. The principal under this line of credit is payable
in nine (9) annual instaliments of $100,000 that began on January 1, 2005 with the entire outstanding balance due and payable
on January 1, 2014. Interest is calculated annually using a rate of prime minus 0.50% (7.75% and 6.50% at December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively). The line of credit is secured through the pledge of all issued and outstanding shares of the Bank's capital stock.
The outstanding principal balance at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was $700,000 and $800,000, respectively. The arrangement
provides for the Company and Bank to comply with financial covenants related to capital levels, the allowance for loan losses,
dividend payments, and other financial matters. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company and the Bank were in compliance
with these covenants.

Note 9 -Employee benefit plan

The Bank has a 401(k) salary-deferred plan covering substantially all employees. At the discretion of the Bank's Board of Directors,
the Bank may match a percentage of the annual amounts deferred by employees. Matching amounts are funded by the Bank as
accrued. Total deferred and matching amounts are limited to amounts that can be deducted for Federal income tax purposes. The
Bank’s matching contributions were approximately $168,000, $141,000, and $154,000, respectively, for each of the years in the
three year period ended December 31, 2006,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued;
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements

The primary source of funds available to the Company is the payment of dividends by its subsidiary bank. Banking regulations
limit the amount of dividends that may be paid by the Bank without pricr approval of regulatory agencies.

The Bank is subject to various reguiatory capital requirements administered by state and Federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional discretionary, actions by regulators
that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and
the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative
measures of the Bank’s assets, liabitities, and certain off-balance-sheet items, as calculated under reguiatory accounting practices.
The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the requlators about components, risk
weightings, and other factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier | capital {as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined) and
of Tier | capital {as defined) to average assets {(as defined). Management believes that, as of December 31, 2006, the Bank met all
capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of December 31, 2006, the most recent notification from the regulatory agencies categorized the Bank as well-capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well-capitalized, the Bank must maintain mini-
mum total risk-based, Tier | risk-based, and Tier | leverage ratios, as set forth in the table below. There are no conditions or events
since that notification that rnanagement believes have changed the Bank’s category.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continsed)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements (continued)

The Bank’s actual capital amounts (in thousands) and ratios are also presented in the table.

B T —ﬂ| [ EL@FOT— I Required To Be Well-Capitalized ‘
Actual ' Capital Adequacy ! Under Prompt Corrective
IL B J Purposes ] L Action Provisions .
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2006:
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets)
Bank $ 36,981 10.68% $ 28,033 8.0% 5 35041 10.0%
Consclidated $ 36,734 10.61% $ 28,033 80% % - -
Tier 1 capital (to risk
weighted assets)
Bank S 32,653 9.43% $ 14,016 4.0% $ 21,025 6.0%
Consolidated $ 32,407 9.36% $ 14,016 40% $ - -
Tier 1 leverage (to
average assets)
Bank $ 32,653 8.08% 5 14,90 4.0% 5 18626 5.0%
Consolidated $ 32,407 7.85% $ 14,901 4.0% S - -
As of December 31, 2005:
Total capital (to risk
weighted assets)
Bank $ 33470 11.37% $ 23,550 8.0% S 29437 10.0%
Consolidated 5 32841 11.16% $ 23,550 8.0% 5 - -
Tier 1 capital (to risk
weighted assets)
Bank 5 29,792 10.12% $ 11,775 4.0% $ 17663 6.0%
Consolidated $ 29,161 991%  $§ 11,775 40% $ - -
Tier 1 leverage (to
average assets)
Bank S 29,792 832% § 14323 40% § 17,904 5.0%
Cansolidated $ 29,161 8.14% & 14,323 40% 5 - -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 21, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements {continued)

in 2005, the Company effected a five-for-four stock split of the common stock in the form of a 25% stock dividend. The dividend
was paid on April 1, 2005 to shareholders of record as of March 1, 2005. As a result, approximately $664 ($0.001 par for each share
was issued pursuant to the split) was transferred from retained earnings to the common stock account.

During 1997, the Company adopted the 1997 Stock Optian Plan (the”1997 Plan”) for eligible directors, officers, and key employees
of the Company and the Bank. Options are granted to purchase commaon shares at prices not less than the fair market vaiue of the
stock at the date of grant. The maximum number of shares that may be reserved and made available-for-sale under the 1937 Plan
is 345,000 shares, as adjusted for the Company’s stock splits and stock dividends.

During early 2005, the Company adopted the 2004 Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan") for eligible directors, officers, and key employ-
ees of the Company and the Bank. Options are granted to purchase common shares at prices not less than the fair market value of
the stock at the date of grant. The maximum number of shares that may be reserved and made available-for-sale under the 2004
Planis 330,125 shares, as adjusted for the Company's stock split in 2005.

The Plans provide for the grant of both incentive and nonqualified stock options to purchase the Company’s common stock. The
Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company establishes to whom options shall be granted and determines
exercise prices, vesting requirements, and the number of shares covered by each option, subject to the approval of the Cormpany’s
Board of Directors.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS 123(R), Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123(R)"). SFA3 123(R)
requires all share-based payment to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized as expense in the
statement of earnings based on their fair values. Prior to SFAS 123(R), only certain pro forma disclosures of fair value were re-
quired. The amount of compensation is measured at the fair value of the options when granted and this cost is expensed over the
required service period, which is normally the vesting period of the options. SFAS 123(R) applies to awards granted or modified
after January 1, 2006 or any unvested awards outstanding at December 31, 2005. The effect of the adoption of the new account-
ing principle on results of operations depends on the level of option grants, the vesting period for those grants, and the fair value
of the options granted at such date. Existing options that vested after the adoption date resulted in additional compensation
expense of approximately $295,000 in 2006. The Company utilized the disclosure requirements permitted by SFAS 123, Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation ("SFAS 123"), for transactions entered into during 1996 and thereafter. For the periods prior to
January 1, 2006, the Company elected to remain with the former method of accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion
25 ("APB 25").
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements (continued)

Presentation of proforma information regarding net income and earnings per share is presented in Note 1 to the financial state-
ments and has been determined as if the Company had accounted for the Plans under the fair value method of that Statement.
The fair value for these options was estimated for each of the years presented at the date of grant using an option pricing model
that included the following range of assumptions:

) 2006 ] 2005
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility 32.7% 34.3%
Risk-free rate 4.3-5.0% 3.8-4.5%

In addition, the model assumed that each option was exercised in the initial year of vesting.

2004

0.0%
42.2%
3.3-37%

For purposes of proforma disclosures, the estimated fair value of options is amortized to expense over the option’s vesting pe-
riod. Option vafuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the expected stock price volatility.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. In management’s opinion, the model
does not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of options.

Vesting requirements are determined by the Board of Directors at the time options are granted and generally provide for vesting
over a four-year period. The Plans provide that vesting periods may not exceed ten years.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity, and related information, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, follows, Exercise price per share information is based on weighted averages,

2006 2005
Options ExPe;:i;ﬁ:rr;(e Options Ex;;:i;ﬁ::;ce Options Ex:;:i;le‘::;ce
Quitstanding at
beginning of year 310,569 § 7.09 301,474 % 5.82 309630 S 5.66
Granted 33,33 14.60 33,890 16.30 3,844 16.07
Exercised (10,400) 571% (24,795} 4.29 {10,750} 371
Forfeited (3,000} 11.71 - - - -
Expired - - - - {1,250) 14.30
QOutstanding at
end of year 330560 § 7.85 310569 S 7.09 301474 S 5.82
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements (continued)
Stock options exercisable and the weighted-average exercise price, at December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, follows:

2006 2005 2004

Options 269,675 238,033 220,898
Weighted-average exercise price S 6.30 S 5.65 $ 450

The estimated weighted-average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as
follows {per option}):

2006 $ 732
2005 5 858
2004 $ 9.63

At December 31, 2006, options outstanding have exercise prices that range from $3.33 per share to $20.41 per share. The weight-
ed-average remaining contractual life of options cutstanding at December 31, 2006 was approximately 65 months,

The Company has issued shares of common stock to non-employee directors as compensation for services rendered. The Com-
pany recorded $172,000, $191,000, and $176,000 in stock compensation expense related to the issuance of these shares for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. The expense recognized for these shares was equal to the fair value
of the shares on the date of issuance.

Following is a reconciliation of the income amounts and common stock amounts utilized in computing the Company’s earnings
per share for each of the foliowing years ended December 31. Share amounts are weighted average amounts, which, along with
per share amounts, have been adjusted to reflect the 5-for-4 stock split effected April 1, 2005.

2006
Income Shares
{Numerator)  {Denominator) Per Share

‘Dollars in thousands, excep! per share)

Basic EPS
Income available to common stockholders S 2,897 3,370,277 S 0.86
Effect of stock options outstanding - 115,287 0.03
Diluted EPS
Income available to common stockholders,

plus conversions S 2,897 3,489,564 5 0.83
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {comtinued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 10 - Shareholders’ equity and regulatory requirements (continued)

] 2005 .
Income Shares
(Numerator) {Denominator) Per Share

{Dotlars in thousands, except per share)

Basic EPS
Income available to common stockholders $ 3455 3,336,834 S 1.04
Effect of stock options outstanding - 187,460 0.06
Diluted EPS
Income available to common stockholders,

plus conversions $ 3455 3,524,294 5 0.98

S 2006
Income Shares
(Numerator)  (Denominator) Per Share
{Dollars in thousands, except per share)

Basic EPS
Income available to common stockholders $ 3,502 3,305,534 s 1.06
Effect of stock options outstanding - 216,342 0.07
Diluted EPS
Incomne available to common stockholders,

plus conversions 5 3,502 3,521,876 $ 0.99

Note 11 - Income taxes

The total income taxes in the statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows
{in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Current tax $ 1,632 $ 2,231 $ 2,515
Deferred tax (benefit) (172 (289} (348)

$ 1460 $ 1,942 S 2167
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 11 - Income taxes (continued)

The Bank’s provision for income taxes differs from the amounts computed by applying the Federal and state income tax statutory

rates to income before income taxes. A reconciliation of the differences is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Federal statutory rates 34.0% 34.0% 34.0%
State taxes 6.0% 6.0% 6.0%
Tax exempt income (2.0) - -
Nondeductible interest 05 - -
State tax credits (4.7) (3.4) -
Other, including effect of graduated
rate brackets {0.3) (0.6) (1.8)
33.5% 36.0% 33.2%
The primary compenents of deferred income taxes at December 31, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:
2006 2005
{ln thousands)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losses S 1,406 1,218
Unrealized loss on securities available-for-sale 158 3
Amortization of GA low-income housing tax credits 38 -
Valuation allowance on GA low-income housing tax credits {47) -
Deferred income tax assets 1,555 1,529
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation 195 188
Deferred income tax liabilities 195 188
Net deferred income tax assets 5 1,360 1,341

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent on sufficient future taxable income during the period that deductible temporary

differences are expected to be available to reduce taxable income.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 12 -Commitments and contingencies
In the ordinary course of business, the Bank may enter into off-balance-sheet financial instruments that are not reflected in the
financia! statements. These instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instru-

ments are recorded in the financial statements when funds are disbursed or the instruments become payable.

The Bank uses the same credit policies for these off-balance-sheet financial instruments as it does for other instrurments that are
recorded in the financial statements.

Following is an analysis of significant off-balance-sheet financial instruments for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005

fin thousands)
Commitments to extend credit $ 79,828 ) 66,262
Standby letters of credit 2,389 1,947
$ 82,217 5 68,209

Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee, Since many
of the commitment amounts expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. In managing the Bank's credit and market risk exposure, the Bank may participate these commitments
with other institutions when funded. The credit risk involved in issuing these financial instruments is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loans to customers. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Bank, upon extension
of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the customer. Collateral held varies, but may include real estate and im-
provements, marketable securities, accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, and personal property.

The Company, as part of its retail mortgage loan production activities, routinely enters into short-term commitments to originate
loans. Most of the loans will be sold to third parties upon closing. For those loans, the Company enters into individual forward
sales commitments at the same time the commitments to originate are finalized. While the forward sales commitments function
as an economic offset and effectively eliminate the Company’s financial risk of rate changes during the rate lock period, both the
commitment to originate mortgage loans that will be sold and the commitment to sell the mortgage loans are derivatives, the
fair values of which are essentially equal and offsetting. The fair values are calculated based on changes in market interest rates
after the commitment date. The notional amounts of these mortgage loan origination commitments and the related forward sales
commitments were approximately $38 million each at December 31, 2006. The net unrealized gains/losses of the origination and
sales commitments did not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Company at December 31, 2006
or 2005.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continted)

December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 12 -Cammitments and contingencies (continued)

The Company has executed individual forward sales commitments related to retail mortgage loans, which are classified as loans
held for sale. The forward sales commitments on retail mortgage loans function as an economic offset and mitigate the Company’s
market risk on these toans. The notional value of the forward sales commitments on retail mortgage loans at December 31, 2006
was approximately $57 millicn. The fair value of the sales commitments on retail mortgage locans resulted in no material gains or

losses to the Company at December 31, 2006 or 2005.

The nature of the business of the Bank is such that it ordinarily results in a certain amount of litigation. In the opinion of manage-
ment, there are no present rnatters in which the outcome will have a material adverse effect an the Company’s financial state-

ments.

Note 13 - Supplemental consolidated cash flow information

2006 2005 2004

(Doflars in thousands}

Income taxes paid $ 1,39 S 1,847 S 2,125
Interest paid $ 10295 § 7677 S 4232

Note 14 -Fair value of financial instruments

The estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments, for those instruments for which the Bank’s management believes
estimated fair value does not by nature approximate the instruments’ carrying amount, are as follows at December 31, 2006 and

2005 (in millions):

2006
Carrying Fair Carrying
Amount Value Amount
Loans and loans held for
sale, net $ 3333 S 384.1 $ 284.6
Certificates of deposit 5 206.7 S 2083 5 156.2

Estimated fair value information of investment securities is presented in Note 2 of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 15 -Other expenses

Other non-interest expenses for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

{Dollars in thousands)

Data processing $ 759 $ 720 1) 618
Legal and accounting 367 393 318
Printing and supplies 319 360 356
Advertising 303 295 295
Telephone 174 167 194
Qutside services 458 364 409
Other 2,263 1,931 2,021

5 4,643 $ 4,230 5 421

Note 16 -Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income and related tax effects for each of the years ended December 31, 2008, 2005
and 2004 are as follows {in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Unrealized holding losses on
available-for-sale securities S 424 $ (863) S (356)
Tax effect (153) 352 141
Net of tax amount $ 27 $ (511 5  (215)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 17 - Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following table represents summarized data for each of the quarters in 2006 and 2005 {in thousands, except earnings per
share data):

Selected Quarterly Data
($ in thousands, except per share data)

2006 ‘ 2005
2 3Q 20 12 aQ 3Q 20 1Q

Interest income $7,230 $6,437 56,057 $5,611 $5,738 $5,538  $4967 54,633
interest expense 3,693 3,212 2,651 2,413 2,455 2,432 1,915 1,618
Net interest income 3,537 3,225 3,406 3198 3,283 3,106 3,052 3015
Provision for loan losses 198 242 275 183 {81) 356 427 320
Net interestincome after

provision for loan losses 3,339 2,983 3,131 3,015 3,364 2,750 2,625 2,695
Non-interest income 2,815 2,435 2,342 2,208 2,553 2,977 2,324 2,476
Securities gain (loss) - - - - - - - 1
Non-interest expenses 4,606 4,474 4,544 4,287 4,332 4,229 3,916 3,891
Income before income

tax expense 1,548 944 929 936 1,585 1,498 1,033 1,281
Income tax expense 602 275 296 287 536 546 378 482
Net income $ 946 $ 669 $633 $649 51,049 $952 $ 655 $ 799
Basic earnings per

common share 50.28 50.20 $0.19 50.19 $0.31 50.28 $0.20 $0.24

| Diluted earnings per
common share $0.27 $0.19 5018 50.19 $0.30 $0.27 50.19 $0.23
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 18 -Condensed financial information on Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. (parent company only)

Condensed Balance Sheet
December 31, 2006 and 2005
{dollars in thousands)

2006 2005
Assets
Cash 5 112 5 81
Investment in subsidiary 32,373 29,240
Other assets 404 42
Deferred tax benefit 0 88
Total assets $ 32,889 5 29,451
Liabilities
Note payable $ 700 $ 800
Other Liabilities 63 42
Total liabilities 763 842
Shareholders’ equity 32,126 28,609
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 32,889 $ 29,451
Condensed Statement of Income
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{doltars in thousands)
2006 2005 2004
Income, dividends from subsidiary S - S 85 ) -
Expenses
Director compensation (48) (313 (112}
Other (282) {206) (199)
Total expenses (330) {237) (311)
Loss before income tax benefits and equity in
undistributed earnings of subsidiary {330} (152) (211}
Income tax benefits 187 88 117
Loss befare equity in undistributed
earnings of subsidiary {143) (64) {194)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 3,040 3,519 3696
Net income $ 2,897 $ 3455 $ 3,502
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
December 31, 2006 and 2005

Note 18 -Condensed financial information on Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. (parent company only} (continued)

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
{dollars in thousands)

2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from operating activities
Netincome 5 2,897 5 3,455 5 3,502
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Stock-based compensation expense 295 - -
Stock compensation 172 191 176
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary (3,040) (3,519) (3,696)
Net change in other assets and liabilities {252) (59) 42
Total adjustments {2,825) (3,387) {3,478}
Net cash provided by operating activities 72 68 24
Cash flows from financing activities

Payments on borrowed funds {100) (100) (100)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock, and
exercise of stock options 59 106 40
Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities (41) 6 (60)
Net change in cash 31 74 (36)
Cash at beginning of the year 81 7 43
Cash at end of the year S 112 S 81 5 7
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GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES, INC.
FirsT BANK OF GEORGIA

) C EQO’s

~ Left to Right:
Patrick G. Blanchard,
President & CEQ,

" Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc, .
.and Vice Chairman of
First Bank of Georgia
“and Remer Y. Brinson III,
President & CEQ,

First Bank of Georgia
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FirsT BANK OF (QEORGIA

Putured left to right: {seated) Remer Y. Brinson LI, President & CEQ, First Bank of Georgia and Patrick G. Blanchard, President & CEQ,
C{orgm-Caro!'ina Bancshares, Ine. and Viee Chairman of First Bank of Cmrgia. Sr.m.fm_g [c_'ﬂ fo r(gf:t Marie Sutton, Senior Vice President & Cbr’{f Operations Officer;

Bradlry | Gregery, Senior Viee President & Chief Financial Officer; Thontas M. Bird, Fxecutive Viee Presidens, Firse Bank Mortgage; Williany W MeCartney,
Senior Viee President & Investment Consultant, FB Financial Services; and W Cameron Nixon, Senior Viee President & Senior Lending Officer

FIRST BANK MORTGAGE
A DIVISION OF FIRST BANK OF GEORGIA
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

el

i

i

Standing left 10 right: Thomas M. Bird, Executive Vice President & Division Head; Hugh E. Hollar, Senior Vier President & Manager
of the Consiruction Lending Department of the bank; Lynn Holley, Senior Vice President & Operations Officer of the division;

and David Holloway, Senior Vice President & Munager of the Wholesale Department.
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GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES, INC.

FirsT BANK OF GEORGIA

BoARD OF DIRECTORS

Pictured seated left to right: A. Montague Miller, Chairman of the Beard, First Bank of Georgia and Samuel A. Fowles, Jr, Chairman of the Board,
Georgia-Carolina Banesbares, Inc. Standing left 10 vight James L. Lemley, M. D, Joseph D Greene, Karert M. Foushee, M.D, Remer Y. Brinson I, President & CEQ,
First Bank of Grorgia; Patrick G. Blanchard, President & CEQ, Ceorgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. and Vire Chairman of First Bank of Georgia.

Puctured seated left to right: Jobn W " Lee and Phillip G. Farr.
Standmg left 10 rghe: Robert N Wilson, Jr, Clayton I Boardman 11, Bennye M . Young, and Arthur | “Sonny” Gay, Jr
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&
FirsT BANK OF GEORGIA

BoOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pretwred seared left 10 righ: - Ceorge H. Inman, Viee Chairman of the Board of Georgia-Carolina Bancskares, Inc. and Larry DeMeyers.

Standing left 1o bt R Culpepper, Julian W Qshon, William G, Hatcker, Sr., and Don /A, Cranthani.

Standg left 1o ryght- Hugh L. Hamilton, Jr, William D McKnight, David W foesbury, Sr., and | Randal Hall
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FirsT BANK OF GEORGIA
ADVISORY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Seated left to right: 1. Gary Kateoff, DDS, Randall W Hatcher, Jeffery L Hadden, and Brent A. Smith.
Standsng left 10 right: Walter P “Nick” Carter, Lowis Mulberin 111, The Honorable Connie Cheatbam, The Honorable Cindy Mason and Mike Wall

Seated left to riphts Adarsh K. Gudari, PhD), | Cary Wasers, foseph | Rogers, and The Honorable Charles B. Webster
Standung left o right: T. R. Reddy, Jake Ivey, (. Shayne Grorge, George M. Duchring, and B. William Cleveland,
Nat Pictured: Dy, Shirley Lewis, The Honorable fie Whitehead, and Stephen H. Steirberg.
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GEORGIA CAROLINA BANCSHARES, INC.

Samuel A. Fowler, Jr.

Chairman of the Board

A. Montague Miller
Chairman of the Board

Patrick G, Blanchard
Viee Chairman of the Board

Re:m(‘,l' \l" Brinsnn ]ll
President & CEO

Bradley J. Gregory
Senior Vice President,

CFQ & Secrctary/Tn‘asurer

Thomas M. Bird
Execcurive Vice President

First Bank Mc)rtgngt‘

William W, McCartney, Jr.
Sentor Vice Prestdent &
Investment Consultant

FB Financial Services

W. Cameron Nixon
Senior Vice President &
Senior Lending Officer

Sandra 8. Davis-Artaway

Senior Vice Presidem &

Office Manager

Daniel Village Office-Augusta, GA

Hugh E. Hollar
Sentor Vice President
Canstruction Lending Department

Lynn Holley
Sentor Vice Prestdent-Operations
First Bank Mortgage-Augusta, GA

David Holloway
Senior Vice President
First Bank Mortgage-Augustz, GA

Cedric J. Johnson
Senior Vice President &
Community Development Officer

Frank Lee
Senior Vice President

First Bank Mortgage-Augusta, GA

Donald H. Skinner
Senior Vice President &
C()]ul'nbl;] (—:()Uﬂt)' ISXCCUIE\'(‘

Marie B, Sutton

Senior Vice President,
Chief Operations Officer &
Officer & CRA Officer

James W, Brantley
Vice President & Office Manager

George H. Inman

Vice Chairman of the Board

OFFICERS

FirsT BANK OF GEORGIA

OFFICERS

Yvonne C. Davis
Vice President & Business Banker

Joyce Frankenheld
Wice President & Internal Audit
Coordinator

Gfﬂrge Lukcy
Vice President & City Executive

Hill Street Office - Thomson GA

Lynn McDonald
Vice President
Firs: Bank Mortgage - Augusta GA

David Mordecai
Vice President
First Bank Mortgage - Jacksonwville FL

Scott Rollins
Vice President & Credic Officer

Greg Scurlock
Vice President & Commercial
Lender/Business Banker

David Scelbrink
Vice President

First Bank Mortgage - Jacksonville FL

Lisa D. Hayes
Assistant Vice President & Controller

Shirley McKinney
Assistant Vice President &
Loan Operations Manager

Laura O. Morgan
Assistant Vice President &
Training Coordinator

Gay L. Morris

Assistant Vice President &
Assistant Office Manager
Daniel Village Office

Michelle Piper

Assistant Vice President &
Oftice Manager

Fury’s Ferry Office

James H. Rigsby 111

Assistant Vice President

First Bank Mortgage-Augusta GA
Phyllis Salazar

Asststant Vice President &

Office Manager-West Town Office

Michelle Starnes
Asssistant Vice President &
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Patrick G. Blanchard
President & CEO

Bradley J. Gregory

Senior Vice President, CFO

& Secretary

Amy M. Sykes
Assistant Vice President &
Human Resource Manager

Brenae Thomann
Asssistant Vice President &
Office Manager

Medical Center Office

Renee Wright

Assistant Vice President &

Oftice Manager
Hill Streer Office - Thomson

Tina G. Bland
Banking Officer & Assistanc
Office Manager-Medical Center Office

Jal'le Drake
Banking Officer & Assistant
Office Manager-West Town Office

Marc Wilson
Banking Officer

Mike Love
Collections Officer

Paula Anderson

Mortygage Officer

Paula Beatry
Mortgage Compliance Officer

Brenda Holdren
Mortgage Officer

Barbara Howell
Mortgage Officer

Leslic Kromke
Mortgage Officer

Sharon Spencer
Mortgage Officer

Cheryl Dawson
Operattons Officer

Jerry Dunn
Technology Officer

Lynn M. Lambert
Administrative Qfficer
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GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES, [NC.

DirecTORS & EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

NAME

Patrick G. Blanchard
Remer Y. Brinson Ill

Larry DeMeyers

Phillip G. Farr
Samuel A. Fowler, Jr.

Arthur J. Gay, Jr.

Joseph D. Greene
Bradley J. Gregory

J. Randal Hall

Hugh L. Hamilton, Jr.
William G. Hatcher
George H. Inman
David W. Joesbury, Sr.

JohnW. Lee

James L. Lemley, M. D.

A. Montague Miller

Julian W. Osbon

Robert N. Wilson, Jr.

Bennye M. Young

George 0. Hughes
Director Emeritus

OCCUPATION

President and Chief Executive Officer, Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc.
President and Chief Executive Officer, First Bank of Georgia

President and Chief Operating Officer (retired),

Bankers First Corporation and its successor, SouthTrust Bank
Principal, Phillip G. Farr, CPA, PC.
Actorney, Fowler & Wills, Atrorneys at Law

Prestdent and Chief Execurive Officer, T and T Associates, [nc.
(land development and consulting)

Professor, Augusta State University

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer And Sccretary
Arrorney, Warlick, Trite, Stebbins & Hall, P. C., Former State Senaror
President and Chief Executive Officer, Genesis Healch, L.L.C.

Chicf Executive Qfficer, MAU., Tnc, (personnel services)

Chairman (retired}, Club Car, Inc. {(manufacturing)

President, Joesbury Insurance Agency, Inc.

President and Chief Operating Ofticer (retired),
GIW Industries, Inc. (mannfactering)

Physician and Managing Partner, McDuffie Medical Associates

Attorney at Law, President and Chief Executive Officer (retired),
Club Car, Inc. {manufacturing)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Charter Management Company
{ronsulting and management)

Principal, Wilson Finance Corporation and Wilson Venrures, Inc.
{real estate and insurance sales)

Homemaker

Chairman, Geerge O. Hughes Furniture Co., Inc.
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GEORGIA-CAROLINA BANCSHARES, INC.

SHAREHOLDER [NFORMATION

Stock Market Listing:
Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc. common stack 1s listed on the NASDAQ Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the
symbol of GECR. The principal market maker for the Company is Morgan Keegan & Co., Inc.

Corporate Offices:

3527 Wheeler Road
Augusta, GA 30909
Telephone: (706) 731-6600

Subsidiary:
First Bank of Georgia
Member FDIC

Annual Meeting:
The Cmnpany's Annual Mt‘t‘ling of Sharcholders will be held Nlonday. Mny 21, 2007 at 4:00 P in the [ohb[v of the
Corporate Headquarters and Main Oftice, 3527 Wheeler Road, Augusta, Georgia 30909,

Financial Information:

Financial analysts and interested investors desiring informarion regarding Georgia-Carolina Baneshares. Ine. should conract
Patrick G. Blanchard, President & Chief Execurive Officer, Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, Inc., Post Office Box 15143,
Aungusta, Georgia J0919-1148, Additional information regarding First Bank of Georgia may be obtained on the internet
at www.firstbankofga.com or by calling (706) 731-6600.

Annual Report on Form 10-K:

A copy of the Company’s 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securiries and Exchange Commission, is avail-
able free of ch;lrg(' by Contacring Parrick G. Blanchard. President and Chiet” Executive Officer, Gmrgin-Caro]ina Bancshares,
[nc., Post Office Box {5148, Augusta, GA 30919-1148.

Stock Transfer Agent, Registrar & Dividend Paying Agent:

Georgia-Carolina Bancshares, lnc. Transfer Agent is Registrar and Transfer Company, [0 Commerze Drive, Cranford, New
Jersey 07016-3572. They are available to assist vou with change of address, replacement of lost certificates, or duplicate
1099 requests,

Legal:

Special Legal Counsel: General Counsel: General Counsel:
Smith, Gambrell & Russell, L.L.P Warlick, Tritt, Stebbins Fowler & Wills, L. L. C.
Suire 3100, Promenade 11 & Hall, PC. 318 Jackson Street

[ 230 Peachtree Street, N E. 699 Broad Streer, Suite 1500 Thomson, GA 30824
Atlanra, GA  30309-3592 Augusta, GA 30901

Independent Accountants:
Cherry, Bekaerr & Holland, 1. 1. P
Post Office Box 82472

Aclanta, GA 30354-0472
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First Bank

OF GEORGIA

OUR LOCATIONS

* OMARTINEZ

AUGUSTA

Gordon Hwy. 520

Main OFFICE MebpicaL CeNTER OFFICE
3527 Wheeler Road 1580 Walton Way
Augusta, GA 30909 Augusta. GA 30904

(706) 731-6600 (706) 312-6500

DANIEL VILLAGE OFFICE WEesT TowN OFFICE
2805 Wrightsboro Road 3820 Washington Road
Augusta, GA 30909 Martinez, GA 30907
(706) 736-2100 (706) 228-2400

Fury's FERRY OFFiCE
375 Fury’s Ferry Road
Martinez, GA 30907

(706) 651-9595

Hire STReeT OFFICE
110 Easr Hill Street
Thomson, GA 30824
(706) 595-1600




First Bank

MORTGAGE

OUR LOCATIONS

px
B
R ,
¥ JacksonvitE
'~Il!-"*%34iiliik;\j\
&{(
AUGUSTA JACKSONVILLE
2743 Perimeter P;lrkwa)' 9250 ]’);!)'meadows Road, Suite 460
Building 100, Suite 100 Jacksonviile, FI. 32250
Augusta, GA - 30909 (904) 733-0010

(706) 821-6000

SAVANNAH
[38 Canal Screer. Suite
Pooler, GA 31322
(912) 330-9113
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DaNieL Viuiace OFFICE
2305 \Vl'ightsbom Road
Augusta, GA 30909

MEDIcaL CENTER OFFICE
1580 Walton Way
Augusta, GA 30904

WEST TowN OFFICE
3820 Washington Road
Martinez, GA 30907

ATM
LOCATIONS

Main OFFICE
3527 Wheeler Road
Augusta, GA 30909

Hue STreer OFrFICE
110 East Hill Streer
Thomson, GA 30824

Fury's FErry OFFICE
375 Fury’s Ferry Road
Martines, GA 30907

WALTON's CORNER
3626 Walton Way Extension
Augusta, GA 30909

BeLair Cowumsia Roap
4477 Columbia Road
Martnez, GA 30907
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